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Financial and Operational Highlights B B £ KR E

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million, unless specified)

(LERBETREN - BEFZHI)

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company

Total equity

Total assets

Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times)

Total interest-bearing debts to
total equity ratio (times)

Current ratio (times)

Trade and bills receivables
to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover (days)
Net assets per share (HK cents)
Return on total assets (%)
Return on turnover (%)
Interest cover (times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividends per share (HK cents)

Dividend yield (%)

Number of issued shares (million)

Number of employees:
Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan
Mainland China

Total

EESH
ARREEREFEE
AR

g

AWEEREARRELE
(15%)

RBLLE(2E)

G ES
LERE(A)

FELERRA)
BREEFROEE)
REEEHRE%)
EXBORE%)
FSRELR(ZH)
BB rEREEANTE

BB TEREENTE
LERE(%)

ERBREBIEE)
BRBEEE))

% SR (%)
ERITRAEE(AE)
EEAY:

BBREM
BE
RE AR

L

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes 2019
A
8,210 8,531 7,858 9,343 9,322
325 304 479 1,051 773
5,378 5,725 5,897 6,561 6,320
8,579 9,220 9,975 9,325 9,999
0.6 0.6 0.7 0.4 0.6
0.3 0.3 0.4 0.1 0.3
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.9 2.3
42 45 37 27 36
97 96 95 80 73
389 380 394 444 440
3.8 33 48 1.3 1.7
4.0 3.6 6.1 1.2 83
1 12 12 20 91 37
2 693 769 802 1,637 1,163
8.4 9.0 10.2 17.5 12.5
3 235 22.0 34.6 76.0 56.0
30.0 35.0 62.0 62.0 56.0
4 10.2 8.5 11.9 8.2 7.9
1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
769 697 601 622 648
9 10 10 9 10
11,879 12,638 13,368 14,722 15,740
12,657 13,345 13,979 15,353 16,398




Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B i EE £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement E[EiREE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s
consolidated financial results for the financial year ended 31 March
2019 and provide an overview of the Group's strategy and prospect.

For last year, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company was HK$325 million, compared with HK$304 million reported
for 2018. Gross margin was slightly higher at 31.7%. The Board has
declared a final dividend of HK15.0 cents per share.

The textile business was full of challenges in the year. We saw rising
prices of raw materials, dyes and chemicals which led to rapid increase
in production cost. The Sino-U.S. trade dispute has no direct business
impact as the Group does not export fabric directly from China to the
U.S. However, in view of further uncertainty, many customers reduced
their sourcing orders in China. Despite these adverse factors, the Group
managed to increase revenue and gross margin.

The retail business experienced a difficult year. In Mainland China,
the economy was slow down in the shadow of the Sino-US trade
tensions. The business performance of the Group was facing downward
pressure mainly due to the weak China consumer sentiment and the
unpredictable warm winter weather.

Looking ahead, global economy is full of uncertainties and the Group
will be facing a challenging operating environment. However, the
Group remains optimistic about future prospects. The Group has solid
financial position, which is strong enough to overcome potential
difficulties.

On behalf of the board, | would like to thank our shareholders, business
partners and bankers for their ongoing support to the Group. My

gratitude is also extended to our colleagues for their dedication and
hard working.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il R 247

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total turnover
decreased by 3.8% to HK$8,210 million (2018: HK$8,531 million). Profit
for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$325 million (2018: HK$304 million), a growth of 6.9%.
The Group’s gross profit margin was 31.7% (2018: 30.7%), an increase
of 1.0 percentage point from last year.

Net profit contributed by an associate increased by HK$58 million. The
Board has recommended a final dividend of HK15.0 cents (2018: HK15.0
cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total dividend per
ordinary share would be HK30.0 cents, a drop of 14.3% from last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business rose by 4.9% to HK$4,759 million (2018:
HK$4,535 million). The amount represented 58.0% (2018: 53.2%) of
the Group's total turnover. In the year, the Group experienced many
unfavourable operational factors. Rising prices of raw materials, dyes
and chemicals created a pressure on earnings. Labour and energy costs
also went up substantially. The Sino-U.S. tussle has no direct business
effect as the Group does not export finished products directly from
the PRC to the U.S.. However, in view of the uncertainty ahead, some
customers either delayed or reduced their purchasing orders. Despite a
tough business environment, the Group managed to maintain overall
operational stability. Revenue and gross profit margin increased by 4.9%
and 2.4 percentage points respectively. The performance and the key
financial ratios of the business were as below:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(LOBRBETBEN + BRFZHI)

XBREERARRER
BE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLAXMBEFE » ~&£EH
ZHEEEER V38N ERBES2I0EET(ZE—N
F I B¥SS3HET)  c ANAEEERMIEEEMN
REEGNABEI2SEET(ZZE—\F : B¥304
BET) £A6.9% REBEZERMER31.7%(=
Z—N\F 30.7%) > BEFEM.OETMHE -

RS AR EF RGBS EET - B2
ERRERBERESTBERBEEISMUI(ZE—N
F o BEI15.00) c ERFHRE  SEERRER
FRBE30.00L » BMEFT#K14.3% ©

IR

BER CEEE L TA9% B4 7598ET(=
Z—N\F : BE4S3-BE8T) c LBEATEER
R 258.0%(ZF—N\F 1 53.2%) - TR KE
BEEFSTRNEERR - BR > BRI RME
B EFEBRERESD - TERESRERANTEH o &
XESFPLREHRER THIEVE  AREEE
EIEEHRPEEEROZEE - A ARATETR
BE  BHEFIEBRIULE - #REBKIRER
g REBIRAFEREERTE - WAREFERS
Bl EA49% K2 MEEHE - KEBRREREEEH
BLEERBIIAT

Net sales HEFH 4,759 4,535 3,807 4,741 4,718
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 183 15.9 16.9 21.7 21.7
Operating profit (note 1) EERBEET) 354 241 350 666 622
EBITDA (note 1) BB mERESERFE ) 526 410 518 842 802
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRE(%)(H2) 42 1.9 4.9 9.6 8.5
Return on sales (%) (note 2) SHEWEE (%) (H1E2) 5.9 2.9 10.2 14.2 15.3
Return on equity (%) (note 2) RWEE(%) (M72) 6.8 3.0 8.4 12,5 12.8
Capital expenditure ERMRH 160 162 143 111 56

Notes: Yoz

(1) Exclude interest income and rental income. (1) TEEFEFAEWRAREEIKA -

(2)  Exclude rental income. ) TEFHEWA -

EXkEREFRAT —ZT-AEH
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the retail and distribution business amounted to HK$3,448
million (2018: HK$3,989 million), a decrease of 13.6%. The amount was
42.0% (2018: 46.8%) of the Group'’s total turnover. In the year, global
consumer confidence appeared to have hurt by the trade tensions
between China and the U.S.. In Mainland China, the consumption
sentiment was weak. The business was also affected by the extremely
warm winter weather. The performance and the key financial ratios of
the business were as below:

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as
follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(OB BETBEN - FRFIEZHI)

EROERARER#)

SERDHER
WEERDHEERHEER B3 MIEERT (=
— )\ : BH3,989HETT) B 13.6% o WEHEH
REBREEIEZ42.0%(ZF—)\F 1 46.8%) o F
A RFEBEELOATEESBRBERMZIE o £4
BIARFE  SHEBHERD - WEETZERERLK
RIRFTEE o WEBZRREREEHFLLRRIHN
T

(@) EBRBREIBUBLLRBIMT

Net sales HEFH 3,448 3,989 4,044 4,592 4,591
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 50.1 474 45.5 46.6 46.8
Sales growth of comparable shops ALk ESHSHEIRREL (%) (HiF1)

(%) (note 1) (12.8) (6.9) (7.8) 7.3 6.0
Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) SENE/ (BR) (H22) (110) 14 (96) (93) 13
EBITDA (note 2) BB EREBHARE(HE2) (24) 102 () 8 113
Return on total assets (%) (note 3)  BEEWGEE(%)(H5#3) (4.3) 04 (4.8) 43) 0.7)
Return on sales (%) (note 3) EEWEE(%) (H1:73) (2.9) 0.2 2.3) (2.4) (0.3)
Return on equity (%) (note 3) BRUWEE(%) (M73) (8.8) 0.7 (15.9) (9.5) 2.1)
Capital expenditure BAMTH 76 94 73 9% 72

Notes: Mt -

(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during the
year and the preceding year.

2) Exclude interest income and rental income.

(3) Exclude rental income.

(b) the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

(1) AEFIERZFRAF —F1JEEFEENER -

(2) TEEFNEUAREERA -

(3) TEEHZHUA -

(b) REBMBHEINUT :

(HK$'million)

(BEEETT)

Baleno e 3,073 3,274 3,144 3,260 2,821
S&K S&K 136 238 293 415 476
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 12 109 215 304 320
ebase ebase - - 5 98 336
Others Hity 227 368 387 515 638
Total = 3,448 3,989 4,044 4,592 4,591

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

(continued)
Retail and distribution business (continued)
()  the development in different markets was as follows:

Mainland China

EKOERARER®)

ZERDHER(H)
(0 BHHSBREERMOT :

HE AR

Net sales (HK$’ million) HEFR(EKEET) 2,767 3,414 3,476 4,013 4014

Decrease in net sales (%) HEFBZHD (%) (19) ) (13) - )}

Retail floor area (sq. ft.)* SERAAR(EHR)* 1626047 1781314 1723190 1779340 1,700,135

Number of sales associates*# EEE R 4,182 4,946 5,493 6,425 6,971

Number of outlets*s PImE A 2,183 2,499 2,326 2,770 2,865
Hong Kong 58

Net sales (HK$" million) HEFHELEET) 681 575 568 579 486
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%) SEEBEE LM,/ (A ) (%) 18 1 @) 19 9
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** ZEREEE(FHR)* 87,752 79,822 65,515 64,543 62,440
Number of sales associates** EEEHA+ 571 484 385 395 393
Number of outlets*# FImE R 78 73 60 64 59
* As at the end of the reporting period * RIREHK
# For self-managed stores # BEE
a Including self-managed stores, consignment stores and franchise a BIFEEE - B RISTFATE S
stores

Garment manufacturing business

Revenue of this associate decreased by 37.4% to HK$196 million (2018:
HK$313 million). Net profit contribution to the Group amounted to
HK$55 million (2018: loss HK$3 million). The profit contribution was
mainly due to the written back of some tax provisions. In the year,
0.0% (2018: 3.3%) of the fabric consumed was supplied by the textile
division and sales to retail division represented 0.0% (2018: 10.0%) of its
revenue. The operation was ceased already and the Group is planning
to establish a new self-owned garment factory.

B

W ENATRARD37.4% EBHE196TET(=Z
—N\F  B¥3B3EER) c HAEEFEFNERA
BESSHET(ZZE—/\E : HEBE3IEETR) -
BAEREEARN - ERBEBEGERBI® - FR
0.0%(=Z—/\fF : 3.3%) FEAMBHAREBLHEID
FIfLRE - MEHE FAEEZTEHBFIAMGE U A0.0%
ZE—\F 1 10.0%) o LkEKCELEE  mAE
EEFEHR—2EHE R -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 2.0, HK$1,529 million and -0.1 (2018: 2.0, HK$1,578
million and -0.2) respectively. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of
the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash equivalents, to the
total equity.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 12 times, 42 days and
97 days (2018: 12 times, 45 days and 96 days), respectively. The Group
mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash inflow from its
operating activities and bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash
and cash equivalents, the equity attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company and the unutilized banking facilities were HK$2,080
million, HK$5,378 million and HK$5,586 million (2018: HK$2,445 million,
HK$5,249 million and HK$6,049 million), respectively. The decrease in
cash and cash equivalents compared with last year was mainly due to
the purchase of tax reserve certificates of HK$416 million during the
year. The payment of additional tax reserve certificates of HK$416
million also led to the increase in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables during the year.

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$236 million (2018: HK$256 million). The capital expenditure incurred
by the textile business for the year was HK$160 million (2018: HK$162
million) mainly for the addition of plant and machinery for the dyeing
and knitting factory and the seamless garment factory. For the retail
and distribution business, our capital expenditure incurred for the year
mainly for the leasehold improvements of shops amounted to HK$76
million (2018: HK$94 million).

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018 have been set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB fixed
or floating rate borrowings with maturity due within two years (2018:
within three years). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents,
debt instruments at amortised cost and other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (2018: cash and cash equivalents, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale investments) were mainly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. The cash and cash equivalents
were placed as fixed deposits with well established financial institutions
at fixed interest rate with maturity due within one year (2018: within
one year). And, the debt instruments at amortised cost and other
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were mainly fixed
rate investments with maturity due within six years or at perpetuity
(2018: within seven years or at perpetuity). As affected by the trade war
between US and China, the economic condition became more uncertain.
We expect the interest rate will stay at the low level for a much longer
term. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rate risk and
arrange appropriate financial instruments to reduce its risk whenever
appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB,
YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the year end, the Group had about 12,657 (2018: 13,345) employees
in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees was largely
based on industry practice and the performance of individual employee.

B AR (@)

B RAEER
AEEMAERBRERBERESE LA ZEEZ@R o
AEMIEMERTERBELNIEBWET - £
RARMES  YARMER(ZE—\F : ZFR)5
Ho RAER  RERBLZEY - RCHMMAN
BEHTAREMBRARBHABENERMEE(=2
—N\E BERESSEY  HEIPNRER A4
HERE)TERBT  ARERET -HERES
EEYBERERFERNSBEBE—GFER(=ZS
—N\E: —FER)HNHNEEHEEHER - REH
WHANES TAREMEA A B ABENERE
EXENEELERE  NHMBBAANFERARKE(=
EN\F:LERRKE) c HAREESE S8
BERBEETEY - RIFEHF BB ERRERBIRES
RMEAT o AEESHEETREEE - RSB
R HEBHHS T B LURUE B M o

RAFR - AEBEEEE - 8F - A - HEREK
BERBL X AR¥ - BIRHEE  ~5H
EZHEMMNES W UREHERER -
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RAER  RKEENEREE12,657TA(ZE—N\F :
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2011 respectively. The environmental management system
will be reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company to be published on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the

relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/orgainisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1)  World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

(2)  The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

(3) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest
Green Day”;

(4)  Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong;

(5)  Sowers Action;

(6)  St. James’ Settlement; and

(7)  The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the textile industry will face another challenging
year under the U.S.-China trade turbulence. The Group will keep on
controlling operating cost and enhancing production efficiency. With a
strong research and development team, the Group will introduce more
new and value-added products to improve business performance.

For the retail sector, stringent measure in cost control will be taken
to reduce operational expenses. The Group will further develop kids
products to broaden the customer base. To expand the overseas
franchising business is also a core focus of the Group.

With a solid foundation and a healthy financial position, the Group is
capable of facing potential difficulties. Despite the challenges ahead,
the Group remains cautiously optimistic about future prospects.

EUEHEME

EH—EEEENEEIR - RNEE-—@HALSEEZ
ER@BBEH BORRENAL  IFREBHER
BEED - IO RATEBMET - EFREERHF
HEZELES AU ERBE—EFEFHIRRK -

RER - BOAEEB 2L BEREHEES,H
BBaE

(1 tREREBERS;

(2 #‘ERramE[A=mFEFAL;

() FERArmEl[AZSHEA

(4) EEREEERSHEREN

n

(5) HEE{TH:

(6) ERB/EE R

(7) BERLERBHESARREE]-
FEBEEALERIE—EEFORR  FETR
EERBANSHE - Bt - ROGEETEHRAER
REEHE - HERRREE - AuSRE—EEH
BIRIRMES T o

RE

RERNK  HBEBETXEZEETHEHE —F
ZHRE - AEBEBEEERCERAIRREALEN
F o ARERBRARBREE - AEESERES AN
RIBEERUEAEBRR -

TEERSE  SREEGRANHEEESH -
EESMmEFRXREERUERERER - EXABN
BHREEBRTREEEROER -

EREERREEVBRRT - AEEEFRIEE
BIERE - BARRTRRE - AEEHNRNEFE

4498 -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH



Report of the Directors EE & &

The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and seamless
garments; the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories; the provision of franchise services and properties
investment. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end
of the financial year; an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group's environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to
13, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 46 to 49.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
19 December 2018 in order to allow shareholders of the Group to
participate in the Group's profits whilst retain adequate reserves for
the Group’s future growth. The Group intends to make semiannual
distributions which will depend upon the anticipated consolidated
annual profits of the Group, having taken into consideration certain
criteria set out in the Dividend Policy, including the Group’s financial
performance, retained profits, distributable reserves, expected working
capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, future
expansion plans and any other factors which the Board deems relevant.

An interim dividend of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 4
January 2019. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
on the Register of Members on 21 August 2019.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION PBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- THRAKAEERBEIEMBEEAG2LERS
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, &  SEHFIZERERZIHBE > IHECERTBRTK
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/ HRRIREEZIIEET 98 o IIEN THERSEZ
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not BB RZESD °

form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS E4

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

=F-1¥ —F)F -t —F-AF -F-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  ERTT BT BEFL ERFA

REVENUE /9N 8,210,053 8,530,806 7,858,476 9,343,282 9,322,316
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR 397,753 467,858 520,057 1,344,536 858,248
Income tax expense g (77,336) (151,108) (13,521) (87,416) (85,717)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA 320,417 316,750 506,536 1,257,120 772,531
Attributable to: 5B

Ordinary equity holders of ARREREEREE

the Company 325,246 304,328 478525 1,050,655 773,293
Non-controlling interests FERER (4,829) 12,422 28,011 206,465 (762)

320,417 316,750 506,536 1,257,120 772,531

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE BEHEFERER

As at 31 March
ZHEr=E
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“e-7F -2-\F —B-tF —B-x§ —B-If
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BMFT  BEFR  EETT EEFT BEFR

TOTAL ASSETS wEE 8,578,956 9,219,807 9,975,465 9,324,808 9,999,169
TOTAL LIABILITIES “eE (3.201,402) (3,494,818) (4,078,062) (2,764,179)  (3,679,337)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS RS - (475,671)  (447,770)  (428,618)  (233,616)

5,377,554 5249318 5449633 6,132,011 6,086,216

BAERMEMAT —2-NEH G
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$1,837,940 of which
HK$207,254,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption
reserve, in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$684,000 (2018: HK$1,166,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Ho Tak

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, and
still considers them to be independent as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 70, is the executive chairman of the Company
overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He founded
the Group in 1975 and has more than 47 years' experience in the textile
field. He is the father of Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an executive director of the
Group, and the father-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 63, is the chief executive officer of the
Company. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years’ banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 42, is an executive director of the Company.
After his studies at The University of New South Wales, Australia, he
joined the Group as a management trainee in 2003. In October 2017,
he was appointed as the executive director of the Group overseeing
the overall general management of the textile business. He is a son of
Mr. Poon Bun Chak and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior
management of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 73, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of CEC International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he was
a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008), a member of
the Election Committee for the financial services subsector election for
the 1998 Legislative Council, a former deputy chairman of The Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and a former
council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 69, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 61, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he possesses
extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and private equity.
Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree
in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 56, joined the Group in 1997 and is the Group’s
financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a Master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales, Australia,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia.
He has more than 32 years’ experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 53, is the director and general manager of a
major subsidiary of the Group's textile business. He joined the Group in
1988 and has more than 31 years’ experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 35, joined the Group in 2013 and is a director
of the Group’s retail operations. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 11 years’ experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and
a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon Ho Tak.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) set out Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director Capacity

EsnR 87

Executive directors:

HITES

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
EWIE KIREE 2RI A

Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner

THE EnEs

BEEREREEAEBRE#)

EREEAR

BRESELE - AR5 AEEPBRERLTW
& o BR—ANECFMAREE o REEFHRMH
FREHRASEMMET S0 YABTESHMAS:
REERBNEHMOAEEE - HABA=T2Fm
FERTEETEER -

SREFPRE B+ AEEZHAERIRNE
NEZEBRAKE - WR—NWNANFENARER -
BEA=T-FHHELR -

HEELE = thm  AEETEERES - TR
TE-ZEMARER - AL RFAREERAZT
EEXEEETEN - REFTET -FHROHZER
ML c MABWERE S RBERBEEREEZ
IRK o

EERROREBRD 2EZRAR

R-B-REZA=+—R  ARTREGEERE
DI EISARTREOBIRER - RIRBCBRAE
% EDRAD( EHRAD K A2 ERTA
EBETHSRDOEET ) (BEFH ) B
AARBRS - SEFEADARAHREE (TR
ROESRMEEODEXVE) HRGRATARE 28
HERAAMT :

REQBEBRZHER

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital

SR SNCTTRA: Sy
RABHR

Number of
ordinary

I ETEE
BEEAR
2H

1 664,758,104 48.1
6,100,000 0.4
BAERERRAE —ZT-NFR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Note:

1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be
interested in 664,758,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2019, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSON'’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity

513

Trustee
FEEA

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited

Poon’s Holdings Limited
BRERBRAA

Farrow Star Limited

EXIERHI DT

Directly owned

HiEHS
Edgbaston Investment Partners LLP Investment manager
REKE
Edgbaston Asian Equity Trust Directly owned
HiEHS
Note:
1. UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust found by Mr.

Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominee Limited. Poon’s Holdings
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow
Star Limited in turn holds 664,758,104 shares of the Company. Therefore,
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 664,758,104
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Through controlled corporation

TERRREMA TR RAAER 6 E
i (4)

REDBEBRZHER

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s

ordinary issued share

shares held capital
BEZER GAQAEHT

#E RAT =R

1 664,758,104 48.1
1 664,758,104 48.1
1 664,758,104 48.1
96,821,000 7.0

69,181,000 5.0

BfaE -
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EZ7TRA o FREIZRERL &5 5 Farrow Star
Limited 92 E8E 7T  Farrow Star Limited#
B AR R F664,758, 10487 o B » BEHIES
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below, disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed below by the Group in accordance with relevant clauses of
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang
Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, Bin Jiang Road 282-
286, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for
the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term of
two years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rents of
RMB1,329,900.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

(2)

(3)

Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter
of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2018 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 4207B,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong and a car parking space from
WLEL as a training center of the Group for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total

issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as

auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2019 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprised of six members. The three
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Ting Kit Chung
and Mr. Poon Ho Tak. The three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs") included Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law
Brian Chung Nin. Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company
have a term of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
Clause 87 of the Company's bye-laws.

Executive chairman and chief executive officer

The executive chairman and the chief executive officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the executive chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated.
The primary role of the executive chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence and qualification of independent non-executive directors
The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of
its Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1

to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group's
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.

Directors’ insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors
-
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak EWE
Ting Kit Chung THR
Poon Ho Tak EEE
Independent non-executive directors BAFHTES
Au Son Yiu 23
Cheng Shu Wing L SES
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
A: reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s
duties and responsibilities, etc.
B: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and five regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2019. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

=

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EWIE

Ting Kit Chung TR

Poon Ho Tak BEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES
Au Son Yiu ELE

Cheng Shu Wing LI EES

Law Brian Chung Nin EE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit committee (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

monitoring the performance of the Group's internal audit team;

considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the
Group.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 March

2019 to review the followings:

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

the risk management and internal control of the Group;

the effectiveness of internal audit function;

the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2019 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee
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Attended/Number of meetings held
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REARHEBITERRE

Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Au Son Yiu EAE
Cheng Shu Wing L SES
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs and
one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing,
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well
as the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be
involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
terms of executive directors’ contracts, directors’ fee as well as the
remuneration and performance bonus of executive directors and senior
management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FHESERE

Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing W44
Law Brian Chung Nin R4
Ting Kit Chung TiEm
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2019 is set out in note 7 to the financial statements contained in
this Annual Report.

Further details of the directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
March 2019 are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements contained
in this Annual Report.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director, namely
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr.
Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board; reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewing nomination policy for directors and Board diversity policy;
and assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
held one meetings to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board ensuring that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience; to review nomination policy for directors and Board
diversity policy; to review and recommend the re-appointment of
directors standing for re-election at the Company’s 2018 annual general
meeting; and to assess independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEENE

Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Au Son Yiu 23
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ting Kit Chung THER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; approved the adoption of dividend policy; and reviewed the
Company'’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year, except for the following deviations:

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chairman considers the chief executive officer a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the chief executive
officer has been serving for similar duties for many years and he
has good understanding of each operating segment of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Based
on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, they have all complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors. During the year
ended 31 March 2019, the Company Secretary undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to upgrade his skills and knowledge.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

R

Audit services rendered SIRMETRE
Tax services rendered SR MRS
Review of continuing connected transactions EBHFERERS

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 38 to 45.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1)  regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the internal
audit team; and
(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal

control and financial report.

For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down"” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:
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During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant senior
management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnels and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The nomination policy sets out the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The policy is included in the term of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

According to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee would
select the candidates based on the objective criteria, including without
limitation, age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
and educational qualifications, background and the benefit of
diversity as set out under the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee would also take into account whether the candidate can
devote sufficient time to the Company, and in case of INEDs, would
also consider the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
nomination policy and will review and recommend any revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval, when necessary, to enhance
effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the Company;
and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company'’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power
under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the AGM.

Changes to constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower II, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116/ (852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com
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EY:

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 46 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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Provision for inventories
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMESRNMEERRETEE

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$2,171,758,000, which comprised of textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved in
estimating inventory provisions. Judgement was required
to assess the appropriate level of provision for items which
may be ultimately obsoleted or sold below cost as a result
of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such judgements
included management’s expectations for future sales net
of estimated selling expenses.
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We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was made
in accordance with the policy. We have examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRRETER@®

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2 o PSRN TEERRENER

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting We tested the reliability of the underlying data used by
judgement and estimates, the write-down of inventories management to calculate the inventory obsolescence
and the balance of inventories are included in notes 3, 6 provisions by reviewing the inventory ageing analysis
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements. and checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent sales

and usage.
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We also tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.
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For those items which were identified as slow-moving,
excess or obsolete, we assessed management’s
calculation of net realisable value by checking to the
latest or subsequent selling prices.
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Recoverability of trade receivables
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As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade We tested the controls over the Group’s collection
receivables before loss allowance for impairment of trade procedures and the Group's estimation of expected
receivables amounted to HK$777,498,000 and the loss credit losses. We evaluated the allowance of doubtful
allowance for impairment of trade receivables amounted debts recognised taking into account the historical
to HK$13,499,000. cash collection trend, subsequent settlements, ageing

analysis of the trade receivables and adjustments to
the historical loss rates based on current local economic
environment and forward-looking information. We
also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
about the degree of estimation involved in arriving at
the allowance amount.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BARETEE®)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRENSEE 2 MAEEERESEE
During the year, due to the adoption of a new accounting
standard, a change in accounting policy on impairment
assessment of trade receivables was noted. The new
accounting policy for impairment assessment of trade
receivables was detailed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. Management used a provision
matrix to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs") for
trade receivables. The matrix was initially based on the
Group'’s historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates
including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such
as forecasted economic conditions. We focused on this
area because it requires a high level of management’s
judgement and due to the materiality of the amounts
involved.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2{Ef 3R &

FARETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFAS RS NAEEERETSE

Tax provisions and contingencies

HIER B R AR TE

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD") initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain
subsidiaries of the Group for the years of assessment of
2005/2006 to 2016/2017. Estimating the outcome of the
final tax position and the assessment as to whether a
provision and the amount of such provision should be
recognised are complex and judgmental, and the amounts
involved would be material to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included making enquires of
the Directors to obtain their view on the status of the
review conducted by the IRD and understanding the
process followed by management to assess the impact
of such review. Our internal tax specialists analysed the
Group’s correspondence with the IRD and considered
management’s assessments of the probability and
outcome of the objections to the estimated assessments
or additional assessments issued by the IRD with
reference to other similar cases. We also assessed
whether the Group's disclosures detailing the review
conducted by the IRD adequately disclosed the potential
liabilities of the Group.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
tax review are included in notes 3 and 35(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2{Ef 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & 5 R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

19 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ZR 51 &

Year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ —E— A F=F=+—HIFEZF

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of profit/(loss) of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Basic and diluted (HK cents)

L'ON
HERA

EH

HAGWA R Wz
M B QB K
THRER

Hib&EBR - F8
B E M

FEAL B N RDRF (B518)

BRI ADER]
BiR

AN R
5

RAREERERAE
FFEEIRER

FEANEEEER
FBEEERER

EARREER OB )
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11

2019 2018
—E-—NF == N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
8,210,053 8,530,806
(5.607,619) (5,912,886)
2,602,434 2,617,920
207,480 317,344
- 57,254
(1,596,955) (1,701,581)
(790,423) (758,950)
(42,811) (18,198)
(36,946) (42,810)
54,974 (3.121)
397,753 467,858
(77.336) (151,108)
320,417 316,750
325,246 304,328
(4,829) 12,422
320,417 316,750
235 22,0




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZRE2HBA X

Year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ —E— A F=HF=+—HI FEF

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Reclassification adjustments for foreign
operations disposed of during the year

Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

HttzmEl A (E1R)
REZHBAIEH D EE
BRENAMEE
WA (E5R)
BERIMEEEBESE
2B EH
FRHEBIMEE X
BEEz D ERE

REZHBAEH I EE
BENAMEE
WA (E518) %58

AEEHMRARA
(B18) » Bbiis B
AEERE
W A5
B8
AAALBRBAEE
SRR
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2019 2018

e A St
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB BB
320,417 316,750
(183,312) 233,122
- (3,804)
(183,312) 229,318
(183,312) 229,318
137,105 546,068
167,564 518,167
(30,459) 27,901
137,105 546,068
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& Bt & Ak R 3R

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Construction in progress

Trademarks

Investment in an associate

Prepayments

Long term rental deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long term debt instruments at
amortised cost

Long term held-to-maturity investments

Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables
Bills receivable
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Held-to-maturity investments
Derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Due to an associate

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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13
14
15
16
17
22
22

19

20
20
19
28

21
22
22

22

19
20
20
23
24

25

26
18
23
27

2019 2018
—E-—NF == N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
1,355,312 1,386,473
565,250 524,400
12,215 13,068
528 88,475
33,293 33,293
25,556 70,582
31,428 119,870
86,720 87,183
88,352 -
164,239 -

- 156,902

- 152,061

18,099 32,809
2,380,992 2,665,116
2,171,758 2,237,568
763,999 941,418
186,501 108,931
863,185 566,776
56,946 -
68,536 -

- 211,421

7,057 43,549
2,079,982 2,445,028
6,197,964 6,554,691
824,564 1,019,340
21,443 19,232
532,849 499,026

- 20

3,334 44,160
1,491,113 1,390,804
192,244 234,183
3,065,547 3,206,765
3,132,417 3,347,926
5,513,409 6,013,042




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt & AR R 3R

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF =E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEME
Deposit received eWETE 26 4,000 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITER 27 37,500 187,500
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIBEE B 28 94,355 100,553
Total non-current liabilities HIERBERS 135,855 288,053
Net assets EEFREAE 5,377,554 5,724,989
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to ordinary equity FEAATEEER
holders of the Company FEEER
Issued capital BRITIRA 29 69,085 69,085
Reserves 1 30 5,101,215 4,972,979
Proposed final dividend BRARERE 10 207,254 207,254
5,377,554 5,249,318
Non-controlling interests IR AERS - 475,671
Total equity Fab s 5,377,554 5,724,989
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EE EE
Director Director EWE THE

BAEEMERLT —T—hEH @
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ —E— A F=F=+—HIFEZF

PAONE:]
—E-—NF == N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&FREHERE
Profit before tax RRBE A A 397,753 467,858
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs MsER 8 36,946 42,810
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate FEEEE A TDRF (E8) 17 (54,974) 3,121
Interest income FMEWA 5 (59,453) (76,289)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange SMNESTEESBMI AN AEBERE
derivative financial instruments TR 5 (16,540) (47,082)
Net fair value gain on investment REMEDAERRFEE
properties 6 (43,256) (87,508)
Depreciation e 6 257,491 257,802
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FE(S L HE R 2 EH
payments 6 438 438
Net gain on disposal of items of property, HEY¥% - BMERRZEERF
plant and equipment &= 6 (307) (23,048)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR WS 33 - (57,254)
Impairment of property, ME - BERZERE
plant and equipment 6 3,016 -
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FEMR, (us B E)
of inventories 6 30,298 (6,012)
Impairment loss allowance of trade FEWERTURE S KB HE
receivables 6 537 2,106
Impairment of held-to-maturity BEINBNRERE
investments 6 - 10,308
Impairment of debt instruments REBERANETETA
at amortised cost BE 6 23,781 -
575,730 487,250
Increase in inventories FEEM (92,387) (38,548)
Decrease/(increase) in trade EWEERREERD
and bills receivables (#Zn) 59,098 (211,166)
Increase in prepayments, deposits FEMFIE  STE R EA
and other receivables FEUR BRFRIZ AN (233,127) (172,211)
Decrease in amount due to an associate EAEE A TRRERD (20) (59,279)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BRI REEEmMm
bills payables ) (136,161) 128,803
Increase in other payables and accrued HibEA IR R
liabilities FEsta g m 78,888 56,063
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 252,021 190,912
Tax paid [SERE A (107,315) (6,495)
Net cash flows from operating activities REMBRESRANFE 144,706 184,417

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows i 8 & HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ —E— A F=HF=+—HI FEF

2019 PAONE:]
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHRLSARE
Interest received 2RFIR 59,453 74,174
Net proceeds from settlement of HEETE SR T BETUETRE
derivative financial instruments 14,675 47,904
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYWE  BRERRHEER
and equipment (198,975) (196,449)
Additions to construction in progress AEEEIRE 15 (37,030) (59,965)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEr[HHERE - (97,811)
Net redemption of held-to-maturity BEFZEHNREFE
investments - 106,903
Net redemption of debt instruments FE iR 2 S B AR O ETS
at amortised cost TEFESE 111,768 -
Net redemption of financial assets at EEZEARERABREN
fair value through profit or loss SRIEEFE 6,762 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEVE BER
property, plant and equipment B3RS ON 14,378 42,615
Net outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARFRE 33 - (155)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest W IR R i R (70,032) -
Decrease/(increase) in long term RBHESEESRED

rental deposits (3Z4n) (3,565) 33,002
Decrease in time and structured RETZB=E AL ERH
deposits with original maturity of ZERRFEBETERORD

over three months when acquired 241,329 104,171
Dividends received from an associate 2 E A RIRE 17 100,000 -
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHHESRANFEE 238,763 54,389
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBHRERE
New interest-bearing bank borrowings T 2 RITER 4,492,208 2,026,781
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EEMERITER

borrowings (4,530,250) (3,004,916)
Interest paid ERRE (36,946) (42,810)
Dividends paid 2RE (414,508) (718,483)
Net cash flows used in financing activities METERESRHZE (489,496) (1,739,428)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESERD FH

EQUIVALENTS (106,027) (1,500,622)
Cash and cash equivalents FHzBEeRREEEY

at beginning of year 2,099,699 3,573,414
Foreign exchange adjustments SNETRE (17,690) 26,907
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBRERBESEEY

AT END OF YEAR 1,975,982 2,099,699

BkEEETRAT —T-NER



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ —E— A F=F=+—HIFEZF

PANE:]
—EB-hE —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT BT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRSEEWERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RERBITEMR 24 389,338 468,736
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETLB=EAREF=
maturity within three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 1,586,644 1,630,963
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETYB=@ER LR
maturity over three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 104,000 345,329
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERBESEEY » MER
in the consolidated statement of e BN R
financial position 2,079,982 2,445,028
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B RETMA=@EA L
original maturity over three months FI 8 2 I 30 E BRI R
when acquired (104,000) (345,329)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BeRkBELZEEY - mERN
in the consolidated statement FEHSRER
of cash flows 1,975,982 2,099,699
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
seamless garments;

° Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories;
. Provision of franchise services; and
° Properties investment.

Information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/

registration registered
and business share capital
MY, BER BRTEE/
EEME BRERA

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

RAREBER
EXEEEERARABFETMRILZER
BEERAR - ADRZFEMHIEE A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda ° X EEERR AR T EE
WAEBHAEAETR22IFNHNBESESSE
2/E161E o

RAFE » AEBTREEUT R

o  HEN BMUREBERRZEHERE
%

o ERREHMZTERDH

o RUEBHRERE R

o MERE-

M A R E R
RABZEEMBLRZFHBENOT

Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$3,125,000
KERBERAR BB BERA
7B1£1,0007T &

BREBELERK
7B#3,125,0007T

Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,607,950,000
Garment Limited ’

REEKEHHARRERAR hE/REIAKE 781%2,607,950,0007C

Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000
(Macao Commercial Offshore)
Limited "2

KERE RMEFEERYE) P JEFI#100,0007
BRAR 12

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company Principal activities
KT B ER
ZBHE FTEER
2019 2018
—E-N\F
100 100  Sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
EEHAAREY
100 100 Production, dyeing

and sale of knitted
fabric and yarn

AR RRY  EHRER

- 100  Procurement of raw
materials and sale of
knitted fabric

RBEMBRHEES S

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEER @)
M A mER (F)
Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration
and business

MR BER
BRI

registered
share capital
BRTEE/
ERERE

attributable to the
Company
AN
ZEHE
2019 2018
—Z-N\%

Principal activities

TEXK

Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
services
BAEBXEERAA BB BT REBERE
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$60,000,000 100 - Production and sale of
Company (Guangdong) Limited “ seamless garments
ARG (ER)BRAT 4 HE/HEAE 7#60,000,0007C ERRKCEH
Creative Textile Technology British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Sale of seamless garments
Company Limited Hong Kong
AIRGEERAR RBRLHEE/BB 127 ERAKEE
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Property holding
HK$10 and
Non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEEXERAT BB EBRABEI0TR BENE
ERFEELERE
BT
Winson Knitting Factory Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Property holding
Company Limited HK$10 and
Non-voting
deferred
HK$1,000,000
BE EBRABEI0TR BENE
ERFEELERE
781,000,0007T
Baleno Holdings Limited 3 British Virgin Islands/ US$20,000 100 64  Investment holding,
Hong Kong retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
HEREEERAR RBRL#EE/BE 20,000%7 REZRRERK
g EE
Baleno Kingdom Limited 3 Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
HERERAR B# 710,000 ERRENTERDH
Baleno Hong Kong Limited 3 Hong Kong HK$2 100 64  Retailing of casual apparel
and accessories
HERERBRAR B# LYY ERRENEE

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

AEIREBEER (&)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business

MR BER
BEMY

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE,/
BRERA

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno PRC/Mainland China HK$103,800,000
Co. Ltd. %3

BNZEEERRAERAR » 2 HElHEIARE 71#103,800,0007

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno PRC/Mainland China US$500,000
Garment & Decoration
Co. Ltd 73

TRAFRERRERGERAT > RE/PEAE 500,000% 7T

LETARGERAT

PRC/ Mainland China

RMB1,000,000

hE/REIARKE AE#1,000,0007

Tianjin Baleno Co. Ltd "3 PRC/ Mainland China RMB700,000
REHRERRHERAR "3 hE/REAKE AER#700,0007T
Huge Growth Corporation '3 British Virgin Islands/ US$1

Mainland China
BEERAR - RERZHE/HEKE 1%
Silver Kingdom Limited '3 British Virgin Islands/ US$1

Taiwan
REERAR 3 RBRL#EE/AL 1%£7
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1

Mainland China
RIBRAR RBRL#EE/ 127

HEIARE

of the Ernst & Young global network.

The subsidiary was deregistered after year end.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm

MERRERE)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
KT B ER
ZERE

2019 2018

—Z-N\E
100 64

100 64

100 64

100 64

100 64

100 64

100 100

1 WHHZKE BB EERSE —ZKE

Principal activities

TERH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERREN 2 ZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

BRI TER D #

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERREN 2 ZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERREAN 2 TER D

Property holding

BENE

Sub-letting of properties

DHEME

Holding of trademarks
and provision of
franchise services

HEBERREARH

FTETEH B RS #FH

2 ZHE R AR FREZH -

3 During the year, the entire equity interests in these companies
were acquired by the Group from the non-controlling shareholders.
Further details of this acquisition are included in note 32 to the
financial statements.

4 The subsidiary was newly incorporated in current year.

3 FER o REBRHZERBRNEZZE R AR
DEBIRIE - BRI W IBHYE — L IEERY
BHZEME32

‘ ZIE R AR F AL o

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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1.

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information of subsidiaries (continued)
All subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, certain leasehold land and
buildings included in property, plant and equipment, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (2018: available-for-sale
investment) and derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and

revised standards has had no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

(a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances in equity at 1 April
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, including
the effect of replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit loss
calculations with HKFRS 9's expected credit losses (“ECLs").

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Classification and measurement

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS
39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 April

2018 is as follows:

Financial assets SREE
Trade receivables FEWERR (i)
Bills receivable EHEE
Financial assets included in BERENTER
prepayment and other HEthERRTRZ
receivables SREE
Held-to-maturity investments BEIBNRE (ii)
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1%2 # SRR
BEIA (ii)
Available-for-sale investments AHLERE (iii)
Financial assets at fair value BRAETABEN
through profit or loss EREE (iii)
Long term rental deposits ik en
Derivative financial assets fTEeRERE
Cash and cash equivalents RERASEEN
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade payables R
Bills payable EARE
Due to an associate EAEENT
Financial liabilities included in BEREMERERR
other payables and accrued EitaEvemas
liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities fresmas
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i ERTER
1 L&R: Loans and receivables

3 HTM: Held-to-maturity investments

AFS: Available-for-sale investments

AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost

2.2 EHEEREREEZEEH)

(@ (&)
DEREE
EBEFHEREIRE T IREEREES
MR EEREIRIBT 2|MAHN =
Z-N\FHA-RZHRUT

HKAS 39 measurement
BASTERE39HE

Re-
Amount classification
HK$'000
BEFT

Category
Vil i
HK$'000

BETT

HKFRS 9 measurement
BANBRELENENE

Amount Category
&8 E<hil

HK$000

BETT

L&R" 945,432 - 945,432 AC:
L&R 108,931 - 108,931 AC
L&R 317,646 - 317,646 AC
HTM: 368323 (368,323) - NATERE
N/A FiEf - 368,323 368,323 AC
AFS: 152,061 (152,061) - NATEE
N/A R - 152,061 152,061 FVPL
L&R 87,183 - 87,183 AC
FVPLS 43,549 - 43,549 FVPL
L&R 2,445,028 - 2,445,028 AC
4,468,153 4,468,153
AC 1,019,340 - 1,019,340 AC
AC 19,232 - 19,232 AC
AC 20 - 20 AC
AC 235,699 - 235,699 AC
FVPL 44,160 - 44,160 FVPL
AC 1578304 - 1,578,304 AC
2,896,755 2,896,755

1 L&R @ B RIEWE

2 AC: HEBHERA N EHEERZH

EfE

3 HTM : ##Z 2| Bi8y# &

5 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

AFS : JRHERE

FVPL : BAR BT AR 2 HEE

RAEXRERRLR

S i
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables under
the column “"HKAS 39 measurement — Amount” represent the
amounts after adjustments for the adoption of HKFRS 15 but
before the measurement of ECLs.

As of 1 April 2018, the Group classified debt investments
previously classified as held-to-maturity investments as debt
instruments at amortised cost. These instruments passed the
contractual cash flow characteristics test in HKFRS 9, were not
actively traded and were held with the intention to collect
cash flows and without the intention to sell.

The Group has classified its listed investments as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss as
these investments did not pass the contractual cash flow
characteristics test in HKFRS 9.

Changes to the impairment model

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected losses
for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. Future cash
flows for each group of receivables are estimated
on the basis of historical loss experience, adjusted
to reflect the effects of current conditions as well
as forward looking information. Management
has closely monitored the credit qualities and
the collectability of the trade receivables. Trade
receivables in dispute are assessed individually for
impairment to determine whether specific loss
allowance provisions are required. The adoption
of the simplified expected credit loss approach
under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in any additional
impairment loss for trade receivables as at 1 April
2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Changes to the impairment model (continued)

(b)  Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
including long term rental deposits, bills receivable,
cash and cash equivalents, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
the expected credit loss is based on the 12-month
expected credit loss. This represents the portion of
lifetime expected credit loss that results from default
events on the financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime expected credit loss. Management
has closely monitored the credit qualities and the
collectability of other financial assets at amortised
cost and considers that the expected credit loss is
immaterial.

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contacts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a
new five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to customer. The principles
in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The disclosure
are included in note 5 to the financial statements. As
a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with the respect to revenue
recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the
date of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply the
standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1 April
2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 15
was recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits as at 1 April 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related
interpretations.

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 SHBERRBECEE®)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b)  (continued) (b) (#&)

AT #PIER M B B B 75 3R 5 2E B 55 1557
BEEVBHREAR-Z-N\FOA

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial

statement line item was affected as at 1 April 2018 as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

Contract liabilities BHEE (i), (ii)
Trade receivables LGN (i)
Other payables and Hitn IR R

accrued liabilities Estas (i), (ii)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 April 2018 and the
reasons for the significant changes in the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018 are described below:

Consideration received from customers in advance
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from customers
in advance as other payables and trade receivables.
Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract
liabilities which is included in other payables and
accrued liabilities.

(i)

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified HK$14,993,000 from other payables and
HK$4,014,000 from trade receivables to contract
liabilities as at 1 April 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in advance as
at 1 April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, HK$29,086,000 classified as

other payables under HKAS 18 was classified as
contract liabilities due to the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(@]

(continued)

(ii)

Sale of casual apparel and accessories with variable
consideration

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group maintains customer loyalty programmes
within its retail shops in the Mainland China, which
allow customers to accumulate point award credits
upon purchase of goods in the retail shops. The point
award credits can then be redeemed for cash coupon,
subject to certain terms and conditions. Prior to
adoption of HKFRS 15, the loyalty points programmes
offered by the Group resulted in the allocation of a
portion of the transaction price to the loyalty point
programmes using the fair value of award credits
granted for which they could be redeemed and
recognition of deferred income in relation to award
credits granted but not yet redeemed or expired.
The Group concluded that under HKFRS 15, the
loyalty points programmes give rise to a separate
performance obligation because they provide a
material right to the customer and allocated a portion
of the transaction price to the loyalty credits awarded
to customers based on the relative stand-alone selling
price.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
HK$1,875,000 from other payables to contract
liabilities as at 1 April 2018 in relation to the customer
loyalty programmes as at 1 April 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, HK$6,659,000 classified as other
payables was now classified as contract liabilities due
to the adoption of HKFRS 15.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of

investment property and there is evidence of the change

in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the

use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in

use. The amendments have had no impact on the financial

position or performance of the Group.

31 March 2019 =&
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in the Historical

Financial Information.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases’
Insurance Contracts’®
Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Ventures’
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and

HKAS 23!

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

23 EEMEMRERZEBYBRESE

2l
EX S M E DS e R R
B R M2 3T HT RAG AT B BB T 25 45
Ao

BBIBREER EH2ES
EELACTEN)

BBIBREER AERHEREZ
ELLACTHIEN) BAHE

BBIBREER REZHABZA7
F0FEBESHER  ALELEZHY

F85(—E——F)

(CHES)
ERUBREELNE 165 HE
ERUBREENE S RERSH”

BEHETRA

ERGENEIRR EAZEH
EarhEg
ELTACHES)
EREEE SR  BRBAEE
ECEACHEN)
EBEEL REENTR
283 (BFTAK) BRELEZREER
BB (ERAERE FrER B £ T HEEE
REZEE)
-REE3R
ZE-7FEF ERIBREERNER
ZE—+EHY ERMBREENENS
ZERNE ERGERE R
EBEE
vkl

! HB-F-NF—-A—-AXUERHIEZFEH
IR

2 H-E-FF-A-AXUERHIEZFEH
IR

: HB-E-—F—-A—-AXUEHIEZFEH
IR

4 IAREEE TR H| LR AR FHE R A



2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees
- leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

(@]

(continued)

HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the Group's incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. The right-of-use asset will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The
Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard
on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months
as of the date of initial application. As disclosed in note
36(b) to the financial statements, at 31 March 2019, the
Group had future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$1,234,426,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain
amounts included therein may need to be recognised as
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16. Further analysis
will be needed to determine the amount of new right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including,
but not limited to, incremental borrowing rate to be
applied for different leases.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
April 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to
the net investment, which includes the long-term interests,
only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments on 1 April 2019 and will assess its
business model for such long-term interests based on the
facts and circumstances that exist on 1 April 2019 using the
transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group
also intends to apply the relief from restating comparative
information for prior periods upon adoption of the
amendments.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 April 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

The adoption of other revised HKFRSs is not expected to have

significant financial effect on the financial statements of the

Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
an associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties) the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(M

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(M

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred directly
to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the corresponding
asset is used by the Group. The amount realised is the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset reserve and remains there until the subsequent disposal
or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from the
revaluation surplus to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write-off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric, yarn and seamless garments, cost is determined
on a weighted average basis and, for work in progress and
finished goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel
and accessories, cost is determined on a weighted average basis
and includes all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal or to
make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 April 2018)"” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial
assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
instruments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)"
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are quoted investment
fund. Equity investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)" below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses
as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

31 March 2019 —E—hE=H=+—H

24 FESHBERIBE®)

ERMEERE(ZZ-/\FOA—BAERZ
ERETERE3RETRE) ()
HEHBEAEIN 2 HEE
RECHENANEREENS  AREEL
SRENEERENEASREENIRESE
ERERFERERMEE - FHEREFERE
BIEERRIE o o A SR B R0 E SR 8 B B ALY
ENEREES BT RELHNE - B
ZHEEEEWAEEHETER A —EAFMAL
FERRBEENESRNEER Lt HEWEEJEE
B - ZERFHERE LR REREC THER
fEETER E’Jﬁf‘%?%%ﬂﬂ)&,\lﬂﬂﬁaﬂﬁzﬁw

EACSEBINRESEESRNRZEERAE

HEEFARRRERE (TEBEREBENHRRE

EBBR)RENZETE - G ARAERE

E’Jﬁ@%éﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂ’]ﬁ%%ﬁ*ﬂ%(Eﬂ%)ﬂ%
RIS R EMRFIZR) B o

EERFAERBEAGKERE R mMEES
BHEBRRPER o FIEWA R TR IRE
BERER H%Fﬁ%iﬁ@@ﬂﬁﬂ-ﬁﬁuﬁﬁfﬁ
RRFAESREMAER o BERRAUE BB
BFK - BEF &WELIQ LIBERMEAEEERS
RS -

R - BRERRRBENSRS
fRETREBENSRIEMERD - BISATHER
HYBER 1B IRIB AR AR E LR o

TR ELHIRE
HRAHHESHRE  AEEENE /S
HARFEEEFAEFERERA—ERER -
AREHBRE

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or loss
if the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April
2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accrued liabilities, due to an associate, derivative financial
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April
2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued, with the consideration allocated
to the award credits being equal to their fair value. Fair value is
determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services are recognised upon
the rendering of relevant services.

Provision of franchise and royalty services

Revenue from the provision of franchise and royalty services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life

of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services have been
provided;

(o) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,
over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract.

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
an associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on
an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Such estimates involve
consideration of the possibility and outcome of the objections to
the estimated assessment or additional assessment issued by the
tax authority with reference to similar cases. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2019 was HK$18,099,000 (2018:
HK$23,304,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the trademarks are related. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are contained in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets the Group re-evaluates the useful lives
of the trademarks each year to determine whether events or
circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful
lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of trademarks at 31
March 2019 was HK$33,293,000 (2018: HK$33,293,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2019
was HK$565,250,000 (2018: HK$524,400,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectations for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2019 was HK$2,171,758,000 (2018: HK$2,237,568,000).

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual
default in the future. The carrying amount of trade receivables at
31 March 2019 was HK$763,999,000 (2018: HK$941,418,000). The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
seamless garments segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and properties investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
unallocated corporate expenses, interest income, finance costs
and share of profit or loss of an associate, net of tax are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, an investment in an
associate and deferred tax asset as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,

tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. EEYEER @)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to PEEZHERERRZ2EBNIZRETSE

ZEZBRTSERE °

the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

Production,
dyeing and sale of Retailing and
knitted fabric, yarnand  distribution of casual
seamless garments  apparel and accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
$h%  RORERAKZ ERE 42
E#RER ZERAH At HiE B4
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“F-AF ZE-N\E ZB-AE ZE-0\E ZB-AE CE-\E OZE-AE B\ CE-hE ZENE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BEFn BT BEFr BETr BEFn BEFn BETn BETn BEFn EEFa
Segment revenue: AEBA:
Sales to external customers EFNREF 4,759,007 4534790 3,448,176 3,988,977 2810 7,039 - - 8210053 8,530,806
Intersegment sales NERZHE 6,050 - - - 6,439 7271 (12,489) (121) - -
Other revenue EfbA 69,909 86,560 9,264 31751 76,655 123722 (7.801) (6,984) 148,027 241,055
4834966 4621350 3,457,440 4,026,734 85,964 138,032 (20290) (14255 8,358,080 8771861
Segment results PEEE 354,047 2075 (110,328) 14,094 76,553 129,407 - - R0 384254
Reconciliation: EiiN
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA NS - 57,254
Unallocated expenses FOHER - (4,008)
Interest income FIEHA 59,453 76,289
Finance costs BHER (36,946)  (42,810)
Share of profit{loss) of FEBEATET/ (BR)
an associate 54,974 (3,121)
Profit before tax BHAER 397,753 4673858
Income tax expense #a (77336)  (151,108)
Profit for the year REERF 30417 316750
Segment assets PBEE 483629 4983816 2284540 1915374 604,390 557,719 (880,569)  (316,785) 6,844,657 7,140,124
Reconciliation: FiiN
Investment in an associate REERTRE 2555 7058
Unallocated assets APREE 1,708,743 2,009,101
Total assets #EE 8,578,956 9,219,807
Segment liabilities PEER 808,860 670,405 1,100,878 937,085 19,668 B750 (43215 (49462) 1,386,191 1,581,778
Reconciliation: E i
Unallocated liabilities *PEEE 1815211 1,913,040
Total liabilities B8k 3201402 3494818
Other segment information: EftHEER
Depreciation and amortisation RER&GH 171862 169,877 86,067 88,363 - - - - 257929 258240
Capital expenditure* Fudishil 160066 162397 75939 94017 - - - - 236005 256414
Write-downf(reversal of write- ~ &HH,/ (HEAR)
down) of inventories 13,840 (3,900) 16,458 112 - - - - 30,298 (6,012)
Impairment/(reversal of RUSESAE/ (RERE)
impairment) of trade receivables - - 537 2,106 - - - - 537 2,106
Net fair value gains on REMEDAENERR
investment properties - - - - (43,25  (87,508) - - (43,25)  (87,508)
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and *

equipment and construction in progress.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEIEER @)
Geographical information i & B
The following table presents geographical revenue and non- TRANEFREZ-_ZE—HLE=A=1t—HK
current asset information of the Group for the years ended 31 —E-N\E=ZA=t+—HIEEEZHEKAR
March 2019 and 31 March 2018: IRBEEER

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated

8 HERE L B Eft e
019 2018 019 218 2019 2018 019 218 2019 2018 019 2018 019 218
ZE-NE Z3-0F CE-AF ZE-NE ZE-nF ZR-0\F CR-MEF CB-NE C%-A CE-NE ZE-NE ZR-0E CR-nF SR
HKSO00  HKSO00 ~ HKSO00  HKSOO0 ~ HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
BT BT BT BT MTn BT B BT B BT Bt M BT

Revenue fromextenal ~ SPREEUA

Customers 2072160 2187422 3965165 4325006 996342 832035 1004145 1000043 172,241 186,240 - - 8210053 8530806
Non-current assets FroEE - - 1464251 1,671,962 - - B0 ES664 48997 49116 (133776) (141559 2023582 2,236,161
The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets AEEMFHWARFERBDEEER (TEER
information, excluding long term rental deposits, long term held- BHELES RESFEIHNHRE - REZE
to-maturity investments, long term debt instruments at amortised B ANEE TR A HERE - AR
cost, available-for-sale investments, other financial assets at fair B ABENEGCERNEEREEREERE)
value through profit or loss and deferred tax assets, are based on DRI RERE 2 FITE DM o

the locations of the markets and assets, respectively.

Information about major customers FERFZEHR
No single external customer (2018: Nil) contributed more than AKER  BEBE-IIRAFF(ZE—-N\F &)
10% to the Group's revenue during the year. IR AL RSB R A10% Ak -
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA > EA R K=
An analysis of the revenue is as follows: AR DA -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Revenue from contracts with customers: REEFFITINEHIHWA :
Sale of goods HEER 8,192,968 8,513,554
Rendering of services RAUIRTE 14,742 10,741
Franchise and royalty income IR REFIRA 2,343 6,511
8,210,053 8,530,806
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEFFITLNEHMHBA
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i)  DHFRAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z-NEF=A=1+—HLEE

Franchise
Sale of Rendering of and royalty
goods services income Total

HEEm RER®E HRWA &%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT YT BETT

Type of goods or services ERRRE D E

Production, dyeing ST~ IRA RBAERY

and sale of knitted KeEHER

fabric, yarn and seamless 23t

garments 4,744,792 14,215 - 4,759,007
Retailing and distribution {EARX% &%)

of casual apparel ZERDHH

and accessories 3,448,176 - 2,343 3,450,519
Others Hith - 527 - 527
Total revenue from ZEEIRAET

customers 8,192,968 14,742 2,343 8,210,053

Geographical markets 35 T 35

Hong Kong B8 1,004,145 - - 1,004,145
Mainland China PEIRRE 3,948,080 14,742 2,343 3,965,165
United State of America =[] 2,072,160 - - 2,072,160
Japan SN 996,342 - - 996,342
Others Hitb 172,241 - - 172,241
Total revenue from EFWAAT

customers 8,192,968 14,742 2,343 8,210,053
Timing of revenue WA R

recognition

At a point in time HE—rEE, 8,192,968 14,215 - 8,207,183

Over time RE—IFR - 527 2,343 2,870
Total revenue from EFRAEE

customers 8,192,968 14,742 2,343 8,210,053

BAEEMERLT —T—hEH @
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA > HRA R WS #)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFFITLNEHNHRA (E)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) ()  DHRUAER(E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue T RET AR AR R R &2
recognised in the current reporting period that were et AEHEaBEZWASEE :
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
2019
—E-hEF
HK$°000
B FT
Revenue recognised that was included REHR > TIEEZBA
in the contract liabilities BEREN
at the beginning of the year: aEH
Sales of goods HEEm 16,160
Franchise income SRR A 2,847
Sale of goods — Customer loyalty programmes HEER —EF BH5TE 1,875
20,882
(i) Performance obligations (i)  JBHEM
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is REBBYISTFEENT
summarised below:
Sale of goods HEEm
The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of BERIEHEERT S ASRERET

the products by the customers with immediate payment.
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit and on cash. The credit period is generally within 90
days.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due upon
completion of services and customer acceptance, except
for some customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

Franchise and royalty income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Franchise contracts are for periods
of one to two years.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations (continued)

Franchise and royalty income (continued)

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

WA ~ EUW AR WS #)
RARESITINEHNHRA (F)

(i) ERIEE(HE)

HAEERBEFIRA (F)
RZB-NAF=ZA=1+—0 BXZE
REER T HNENEECREITREBH

RETIWT

HK$°000
BETFT

Within one year
More than one year

The remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year relate to franchise
services that are to be satisfied within two years. All the
other remaining performance obligations are expected
to be recognised within one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is

408
306

714

AHENBE - FRERZBTRENE
EFRERME AR TREIT 2ETEE
BR#% o FRE RS TEIEEFERER
—FAER LXRBESEIEES

Rz AT EE -

constrained.

Other income and gains: Hap W AR U ¢
Interest income FEYA

Net fair value gains on foreign
exchange derivative financial
instruments (note 23)

INEPTEER T AEARERS
FE(RAE23)

Rental income on investment properties KREMEHRESHA

Compensation from suppliers MR ERESHEREE
for defective goods

Gain on disposal of items of property, HENE - BER
plant and equipment REEE WEFE

Government subsidies BB

Net fair value gains on investment properties REYERQ AEWE
(note 13) FREA(ME13)

Sundry income B

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT BT

59,453 76,289

16,540 47,082

25,945 26,981

13,213 11,405

307 23,048

6,402 4,846

43,256 87,508

42,364 40,185

207,480 317,344
BREEAERLT —Z-NEH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. ERBLATER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEZBBALEFS IR (nt) :
(crediting):
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETT BT T
Cost of inventories sold* EEEM 2R 5,607,619 5,912,886
Depreciation e 12 257,491 257,802
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FafT L iR E R 2 e
payments 14 438 438
Employee benefit expenses, including EEFANBEX -
directors’ and senior management’s BREENSREEAE
remuneration (note 7): e (41a27)
Wages, salaries and other allowances TE - HFrekEMmERE 1,313,338 1,379,385
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  E{IKERIFTEMERR 7,161 6,766
1,320,499 1,386,151
Minimum lease payments under operating &E&EHET 2Kk
leases in respect of land and buildings EFREESER 409,878 428,514
Contingent rents under operating leases RE&HEE T 2HAHEE 289,645 334,549
699,523 763,063
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETIN S 2,800 2,714
Foreign exchange differences, net 0E W 2= F 58 (25,605) (37,527)
Net fair value gains on investment REVER REWN FEE
properties* 13 (43,256) (87,508)
Gross rental income on investment REMERS WA LT
properties* (25,945) (26,981)

Less: direct operating expenses (including i : EZ%ER X (BIFRE
repair and maintenance) arising from R#EER) KRG KAERE
rental earning investment properties LES

2,030 2,054
Net rental income HEWAFEE (23,915) (24,927)
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of  1Z&E#E (MUgEE)
inventories 30,298 (6,012)
Impairment loss allowance of FEW RO B8 K 81
trade receivables 22 537 2,106
Impairment on debt instruments at REBHERANER T RRE
amortised cost (2018: impairment of (Z=2—N\F  FZFEHW
held-to-maturity investments) KRERE) 20 23,781 10,308
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BMENREEERE
equipment 12 3,016 -
Net gain on disposal of items of HEME - BER
property, plant and equipment* REE B W FEE> (307) (23,048)
# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$597,196,000 (2018: # EEEYZHEATEEFHS THE - fTER
HK$550,077,000) of staff costs, depreciation and minimum lease EEHE T 2 RIEH S EHE597,196,000
payments under operating leases which are also included in the JT(=ZF— U4 : B#550,077,000T ) X
respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these types of L EBE B HE
expenses.
* These items are included in the “Other operating expenses, * ZEBHEIAGES B AN EMEEE
net”/”Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated Ao R TRMMAR Was J# -

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

ESNSREEAEHERAMUES
FES

EEME

mEWHRA - FEBQBFRBGE383(1)()
(b) ~ (ORMFERLABREESFNEER) R
PIE=F > AEEXINESMES 2 REWT ¢

2019 2018
—ZT-hE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BHEFT
Fees: wWE
Executive directors HITES 30 30
Independent non-executive directors BIHHITES 1,455 1,395
1,485 1,425
Other emoluments: HiE 4 :
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIERSER 26,121 24,881
Performance related bonuses* FIBEAFEATL* 30,450 41,400
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIRER T EIMERR 36 27
56,607 66,308
58,092 67,733
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary * RAAHITEBZETEBL L GEEER

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company.

FrEE BTN E T B FEBBIE
KB HTAL - EN Gl EEZ KBHHTE
ARIRIELFEZEFZXRARERZEE
BE -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EENEHEEASHMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FES (@)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEME(E)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUHIITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNEINFFEUFPTESZHS
during the year were as follows: W

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Au Son Yiu B 485 465
Cheng Shu Wing LS 485 465
Law Brian Chung Nin ERE 485 465
1,455 1,395
There were no other emoluments payable to the RERN U\(ZZE—N\F  |)QB
independent non-executive directors during the year (2018: FMTESIFHMEME -
Nil).
(b)  Executive directors (b) HITEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e 2ER E37) RINEF
He FRLEF B HE 55 MeswE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETFT BT BT BT
2019 —E-NE
Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 15,479 18,780 - 34,269
Poon Ho Tak BEE 10 2,617 3,990 18 6,635
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 8,025 7,680 18 15,733
30 26,121 30,450 36 56,637
2018 —E-N\F
Poon Bun Chak EE 10 15,540 28,800 - 44,350
Poon Ho Tak (appointed on E&E(HR=E—+#
1 October 2017) TH—-HEZE) 10 1,207 2,600 9 3,826
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 8,134 10,000 18 18,162
30 24,881 41,400 27 66,338
There was no arrangement under which a director waived I R EEFAF R R B B EE (AT
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. SHRHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EEMSREEAEMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FES @)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Senior management’'s remuneration SREBRAEME
Senior management’s remuneration for the year were within the AEECENSREBAENEEBRATIE
following bands: :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
e
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 71,500,001 7T £ % #2,000,0007T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7#2,500,001 7T £ B #3,000,0007T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 743,000,001 7T £ B #3,500,0007T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 ##£3,500,001 7T £ E#4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 77,000,001 7T £ % #7,500,0007T 1 1
3 4
Five highest paid employees INGEEHHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three rERANESFMEEEE=U(ZZ—N
directors (2018: three), details of whose remuneration are set FZMES  HEMAMASHR U LENE
out in the “Directors’ remuneration” above. Details of the EME IR BTML(ZZE—N\F : M) &
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2018: two) BEMNES (HUEARDTNES) NARFEEH
highest paid employees who are not directors of the Company are RO
as follows:

2019 PAONE:]
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMRFEESEF 11,099 10,600
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINEFIFT IR 36 36
11,135 10,636
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose rEECXNFESESFNEEMSBNT
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: HIEE -

Number of employees

EBEAH
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 783,500,001 2 8%54,000,0007T 1 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7&#£7,000,0017T £ %7,500,0007T 1 1
2 2

BAERMEMAT —2-NEH @
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts BITERRBZFE 36,946 42,810
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. ®BiE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBFEHERFARE BRI TR
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong TRF B 16.5% (ZF—\F 1 16.5%) 12
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have g o THMMEMERAEHRIE  DIRER
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions EEERKCEMERAEEEBCRITHEFE -

in which the Group operates.

2019 2018
s A

HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT

Current - Hong Kong and Mainland China: RE-FERPEKFE :

Charge for the year RNEEEE 68,823 84,222
Underprovision in prior years* EEEREBTR 1 138,790
Deferred (note 28) IRAE (172 28) 8,512 (71,904)
Total tax charge for the year REEHBEET 77,336 151,108
* Included in the balance of underprovision in prior years for * REZ-F-NF=ZF=+—HILFEWZE
the year ended 31 March 2018 was additional tax provision of FEBETEHGT  QERBEFHIIRY
HK$138,059,000 made in the prior year in relation to tax affairs as BEIRF M TEI5(0) I B T BERE FHIBEIIN
detailed in note 35(b) to the financial statements. IB#E B4 138,059,000T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9.
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rate are as follows:

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

BiIE (%)
RIRAAARARENBARFEDEEBZR
BADSFIU R ER B B BUAM S EAE
EREERHERERAGNT

2019 2018
=B-hEF —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Profit before tax FRBE AT AT 397,753 467,858
Tax at the statutory tax rates REERENRE 36,304 81,806
Adjustments in respect of FAEENSHBERR
current tax of previous years 1 138,790
Profits and losses attributable to an associate FE{LEE& N FJIEE (9,071) 515
Income not subject to tax BEHB 2 WA (55,539) (120,474)
Expenses not deductible for tax FEMEBIE I 2 & A 76,420 40,201
Effect of withholding tax on the FhANEE B B B A R AT R
distributable profits of SR TEI BB S
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (5,429) 5,447
Unrecognised tax losses RIERABIEEE 29,854 17,722
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EEABAHEZRIEEE (3,055) (10,055)
Others Hith 7,851 (2,844)
Total tax charge for the year REEHIEBEE 77,336 151,108

The share of tax credit attributable to an associate amounting to
HK$55,268,000 (2018: tax expense of HK$1,055,000) is included
in “Share of profit/(loss) of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

FEfE B & 0 B HH TR 5 18 5 78 5 55,268,000 7T
(ZZ—N\F : HIEFH X E%1,055,0007T)E
SPAGREBRRZIBEBE QRSN (U8
1B) o

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. KE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend — HK15.0 cents RERE - BRERRER15.01L
(2018: HK 20.0 cents) per ordinary share (== )\E 7 #£20.01L) 207,254 276,339
Proposed final dividend — HK15.0 cents BRIRRERE - SREBREE15.01L
(2018: HK 15.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—\F : BH15.01L) 207,254 207,254
414,508 483,593
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval AEERRZ ARBAREBESFRDTRERNEE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general BITHRFRBFAELES -
meeting.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 11. BEAXAATIEEBEZMEEERERN
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based EZFHQE*U%%EEEZF@ﬁ%LﬁﬁTiFﬁﬁ
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders EELNZEERAIRRZFERACBHTE

of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary 1,381,696,104f (=& —\F : 1,381,696,104
shares of 1,381,696,104 (2018: 1,381,696,104) in issue during the BR) Z MEFIREETE

year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue AEEREBZE-_Z-NF=A=+—HRK=Z
during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018. —N\F=ZA=+—HLFERLE|EBTHE

SIS ENEBER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2019
At 1 April 2018:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2018, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation provided during
the year (note 6)
Impairment
Transfer from construction
in progress (note 15)
Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2019, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

At 31 March 2019:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

Analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost
At 31 March 1992 valuation

12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ZE-NEZRZt-H

R=E-NFBA-A:
AR
ZHERAE

REZFE

RZZ-N\EWA-H "
ENRZHTERAE

HE

hE

ERirEERHZ6)

WE
ERERTRM:EIS)

HNEBE

R-EB-NE=A=1-A"
BHREHRERAE

RZE-AE=A=1-R:
RAS{EE
ZIHTERAE

REFE

RASEN -
A
R-NMA=#=A=1-H
e

Leasehold

land and
buildings

HE
THRET
HK$°000
BETT

12.

Leasehold
improvements

HERTLR
HK$'000
BEFT

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

% BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures Motor
Plant and and office vehicles
machinery  equipment and yacht Total
& KBR
BERMN  BAERE  AEREE &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
AEFI BETT BETT BYTr

1,306,998 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,858,812
(752,613) (841,199)  (2,571,886) (228,380) (78261)  (4,472,339)
554,385 95,913 681,877 29,272 25,026 1,386,473
554,385 95913 681,877 29,272 25,026 1,386,473

2,023 46,670 99,274 41,756 9,252 198,975

- (278) @777 (8,749) (267) (14,071)
(43,958) (75,784) (115,539) (12,516) (9,694) (257,491)
- (2,29) - (534) (184) (3,016)

7,923 - 109,493 - - 117,416
(27,795) (3,844) (38,258) (1,651) (1,426) (72,974)
492,578 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,355,312

1,249,009 921,777 3,229,967 265,535 104,032 5,770,320
(756,431) (861,398)  (2,497,897) (217,957) (81,325)  (4,415,008)
492,578 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,355,312
1,235,407 921,777 3,229,967 265,535 104,032 5,756,718

13,602 - - - - 13,602

1,249,009 921,771 3,229,967 265,535 104,032 5,770,320

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. Y% BERSZE®)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor

land and Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment and yacht Total

i B %BR
THERT HEETRE HEREE  BOERE  NEREE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi V-t V-t V-t ERTr E¥Tn

31 March 2018 —E-N\E=ZfA=t+-H
At 1 April 2017: W-B-tEmA-F
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,174,257 793,686 2,908,127 231,748 95,663 5,203,481
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERAE
and impairment (645,605) (706,921) (2,260,732) (207,148) (69,387) (3,889,793)
Net carrying amount ERFE 528,652 86,765 647,395 24,600 26,276 1,313,688

At 1 April 2017, net of accumulated ~ R=ZE—+FMA-H -

depreciation and impairment EHREHTERAE 528,652 86,765 647,395 24,600 %276 1,313,688
Additions RE 1,338 83,566 92,002 12,778 6,765 196,449
Disposals HE - (601) (12,790) (585) (1,713) (15,689)
Depreciation provided during ERITEERE(HiL6)

the year (note 6) (46,467) (80,927) (112,777) (9,5%) (8,035) (257,802)
Transfer from investment properties  EBZREME(f713)

(note 13) 24,900 - - - - 24,900
Transfer from construction in progress BEER TR (#:#15)

(note 15) - - 2,568 - - 2,568
Foreign exchange adjustments MERE 45,962 7,10 65479 2,075 1733 122,359

At 31 March 2018, net of accumulated R=Z-NE=A=+-R -

depreciation and impairment BB EHTERAE 554,385 95,913 681,877 29272 506 1386473
At 31 March 2018: RZB-NEZA=t-H:
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,306,998 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,858,812
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (752,613) (841,199) (2,571,886) (228,380) (78,261) (4,472,339)
Net carrying amount REFE 554,385 95,913 681,877 29,272 25,026 1,386,473
Analysis of cost or valuation: HARSEE -
At cost AR 1,293,396 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,845,210
At 31 March 1992 valuation R-ANZF=A=1-H
ffE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,306,998 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,858,812
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12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

In the prior year, a building with a carrying amount of
HK$24,900,000 was transferred from investment properties to
property, plant and equipment since the date of change in use.
Such building was revalued at the date of change in use based
on a valuation performed by the directors with reference to the
value of adjacent properties at an aggregate open market value
of HK$24,900,000 based on its existing use.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since
1993, no further revaluation of the Group's leasehold land and
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$2,279,000 (2018: HK$2,715,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REFREE
REMFELREW S FHE

(hyete)
BEYE - BERRE

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Net fair value gains on investment properties
(note 6)

Transfer to property,

plant and equipment (note 12) (KaE12)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMNETRE
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

12.

13.

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

M BRERSEE®E)
REFR » —EREEA 24,900,000 7T H1E
FRAEAREQLARENEEAYE - |
BEREE - ZRFENESSBINIYEL IR
HERERAZNEEARAZEBEEGHZEAMT
S{E{E%24,900,0007T °

BOPHEELHREFER-ANZFES
NEXEMGEEMETEML - ARBE-AAZ=
Fe WEHHASIHREFHFEE—SE
HEE BAEEREBEERE1657Y
# BERREFOABRBEMRI - #%H
HEBUERMMEARNYSX BERREEN
RIERBIEER - MZEHE L HRETRE
SERAEIFTITEIR - AREEREQNRE
#52,279,000T (=& — )\ 5 : #B¥2,715,000
TT) e

REWE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BYTFT BHEFT
524,400 459,403
43,256 87,508
- (24,900)
(2,406) 2,389
565,250 524,400

BREEAERLT —Z-NEH
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with carrying values of HK$507,990,000
(2018: HK$467,535,000), HK$44,774,000 (2018: HK$43,608,000)
and HK$12,486,000 (2018: HK$13,257,000) are situated in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Mainland China, respectively. The
Group's investment properties consist of 12 (2018: 12) industrial
properties, 1 (2018: 1) commercial property, 1 (2018: 1) residential
property in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Mainland China. The
directors of the Company have determined that the investment
properties consist of three classes of assets, i.e., commercial,
industrial and residential, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2019 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan
& Associates, independent professionally qualified valuer. The
investment properties in Mainland China and Taiwan were
revalued on 31 March 2019 based on a valuation performed by
the directors with reference to the value of adjacent properties
and rental income, respectively. Each year, the Company’s board
of directors decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s financial controller has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 36(a) to the financial statements.
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REWME®E)

BRI {8 48 507,990,000 7T ( =& — J\F :
78 M 467,535,000 7T ) & ® 44,774,000 7T
(ZZ— \F : B#43,608,0007T) K
12,486,00070 (=& — )\ : j8%13,257,000
T)HRENEDFURESL - BERFEK
B o REMBEMEDFENNEE  AERT
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REBzMBRERGERRRGEEEREF
—AREFFEPBRRBEGEMETR

A
afg ©

REMEDUELHNOBETE=E - FHER
BRI RMEE36(a) °



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REVIZE#®)
Fair value hierarchy RABEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHEPREERENENDAETESH

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019
R-B-hF=A=+—HWAAETHEEA
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BARTA

IR ATEEH BN

TiZHRE BABE [ PN 6
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%%) (B=8) (B=#) wE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Recurring fair value MUTEREEN
measurement for: DAREFE -

Commercial property [GE A= - - 44,774 44,774
Industrial properties THEEF - - 507,990 507,990
Residential property XEMZE - 12,486 - 12,486

- 12,486 552,764 565,250

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
R-ZB-—N\F=A=+—HBNAAETERA
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EX BARA

RIER ABEN B

TIZHRE BAHE WABE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—#&) (=) (B=R) B
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EETT BT BT T BT T

Recurring fair value U TERE RN
measurement for: AREGTE

Commercial property BEET - - 43,608 43,608
Industrial properties TEETF - - 467,535 467,535
Residential property e - 13,257 - 13,257
- 13,257 511,143 524,400

BAERMEMAT —2-NEH @
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

R=

DRERENNE (EE)FHE
EBEYXE - BRERRE
HPE TR

Carrying amount at 1 April 2017

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments
Transfer to property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2018
and at 1 April 2018
Net gain from fair value adjustments D RERARWNESFEE

SNEFE

Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2019

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques

fhER %

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBENBAYE

13.

T+t FMA—-AREE

REZZE-NF=ZR=1+—HKREE

BEWE®)
DAREZR(E)

ER - E-REE-LCBYEEAIAE
FPEMER  TERE=FEAREL(=F

—NEF )

RZZBE-—NF=ZA=+—HK
—E-N\FNA-BREE

Commercial Industrial
property properties
[SEZ- L2 IHEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT

48,479 405,880
(7,260) 86,555
- (24,900)
2,389 -
43,608 467,535
3,572 40,455
(2,406) -
44,774 507,990

LT BIREVEGEMANGERER IR

ABBHHE

Industrial properties Income approach Passing rent (per sq.ft. and
per month)

BEE (B FIRREA)
Market rent (per sq.ft. and

located in Hong Kong:
UREBNIRET 63
per month)
miEEE(BFARRER)
Term yield
HHpEE
Market yield
mi5REE
Residential properties Unit market price (per sq.ft.)
located in Mainland
China:
URPEIARENEEYR . BERELE

Direct Comparison
approach

BEAHSE

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

HK$6.5 to HK$22.0

BH6.5TEEB22.07
HK$11.5 to HK$24.0

BE15TEEE24.07

1.2% to 4.8%

3.0% t0 4.0%

HK$6,940 to HK$8,115

6,940 T 2B 8,115

HK$6.1 to HK$22.0

61T EBH2.0
HK$8.0 to HK$22.0

B80T E B 2207

1.6% t0 5.5%

3.3% t0 4.2%

HK$6,933 to HK$8,586

76,933 T2 /88,5867
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

13. BEWHE#®)
ARBELER ()

Valuation techniques

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTABRENBAZE

fhER %

Commercial properties  Income approach Passing rent (per sq.ft. and HK$4.2 to HK$13.0 HK$6.5 to HK$14.5
located in Taiwan: per month)
UREENEEET gk RRHS(BEARREA) BEALLTEBEE13.0T 6.5 E B 1457
Market rent (per sq.ft. and HK$6.7 to HK$10.5 HK$7.3 to HK$11.3
per month)
mEEE(HFFIRREA) BIE6.TTEBM10.5T B3 EEEN 3T
Term yield 29.0% to 33.0% 29.0% to 33.0%
EE R
Market yield 36.0% to 40.0% 36.0% to 40.0%
miEEE
Discounted cash flow Estimated rental value HK$4.2 to HK$13.0 HK$6.5 to HK$14.5
approach (per sq.ft. and per month)
BRASREE S EEEFIRRES) B2 T EB13.0T BH6.STEE145T
Rent growth (p.a.) 1.1% 1.1%
HEERE(GF)
Long term vacancy rate 0.0% to0 5.0% 0.0% t0 5.0%
Discount rate 3.2% 3.2%
BRE
Income approach Wz %

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The passing rentals of the investment properties are assessed and
capitalised at term yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The passing rents are assessed with reference to the
tenancy agreement of the investment properties. The term yield,
which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made with reference to
the yields derived from analysing the leasing and sale transactions
of properties and adjusted to take account of the valuers’
knowledge of the passing expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

The key inputs were the passing rent and the term yield, which
a significant increase/decrease in the passing rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties and a significant increase/decrease in
the term yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease/
increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

REWEE  DAERREESWABRER
B ELREAEST fhwT o

REMENR AR SRULEYEREERHN
MISWERTEABRAER - BETIUREY
FEMENBSETIIM - HPRERDAN
BERMEFR  THEBOMBLMEEERHEE
REMEWERTE X EEMEYERE
FUMSERNRDRELFRE  URRAEER
REMENBHREE -

TEHAHBEARBEESRIBWER - MR
BHSBEBXEEM FHLD  BERREWHE
DABERIEZM,FD - MR RS REE
RN, WD - HEBIRENE D AEKRE
B A0 o

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Direct comparison approach

The fair value of the investment properties was determined using
the comparison approach based on market comparable of similar
properties and with adjustments made on factors such as location,
size, age, condition and aspect of the properties. The weighted
average range of the adjusted price per square foot is HK$6,940
to HK$8,115 (2018: HK$6,933 to HK$8,586).

A significant increase/decrease in the adjusted price per square
foot would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the investment properties.

Discounted cash flow approach

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value.
This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally
separately determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is
a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent
and commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the
projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Carrying amount at beginning of year REDREE

Recognised during the year (note 6) FNESE (fat6)

Foreign exchange adjustments INERE

Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

Current portion included in prepayments, MENEDEIEATESRIE
deposits and other receivables ARk EAMERIRRA

Non-current portion JERENER 1D

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

14.

15.

At beginning of year READ

Additions wNE

Transfer to property, plant and EHEYE BERLE
equipment (note 12) (KraE12)

Foreign exchange adjustments SMNEFHE

At end of year RER

16. TRADEMARKS

Cost and carrying amount A BREE

Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
Trademark is allocated to the retailing and distribution of casual
apparel and accessories cash-generating unit for impairment
testing.

16.

AR LEER

2019 2018
—B-NF —2-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
BMTT BETT
13,516 13,396
(438) (438)

(426) 558
12,652 13,516
(437) (448)
12,215 13,068

EETRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —Z-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYTFT BT
88,475 27,018
37,030 59,965
(117.416) (2,568)
(7.561) 4,060
528 88,475

[k

2019
—§-NE

HK$000
BT r

33,293

2018
—E-N\E
HK$000
BT T
33,293

BRERESEAERTEAFHRAERNZE
BRHNERUERMELRESFRA

ERERAFHBRRNRENE

BARRIBEERRGN2ZE

EEBEUERERR -

RDHEREE

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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16.

TRADEMARKS (continued)

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
(continued)

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method calculated
based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior
management. The fair value of the trademarks was equal to the
future royalty savings resulting from ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, royalty saving rate, sales annual growth
rate and discount rate used in the annual impairment testing of
trademarks with indefinite useful lives are as follows:

Royalty saving rate 1.5%
Sales annual growth rate 3.0%
Long term growth rate 1.0%
Pre-tax discount rate 13.0%

Sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty saving rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers

typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rate used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.
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|REAEHEEREN(F)

ERERATHEENEESFUENELEE
BESREEABENTFREREBMET -
BRZARERSERERZEESHE KRR
HRE -

ARG R AR RSN EER
RUNEABHEE  HEFREEREBEN
T

ENEHEE 1.5%
SHEFRERE 3.0%
REER=E 1.0%
BRIRLIR = 13.0%

FrANEEFERRATRUBBNFIFER
R hDERUERAREEEHMSHEN
a8 -
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Particulars of
issued shares held

RANERTROER

Megawell Industrial Limited
("Megawell"”)
BESBARAB(TEED

Ordinary shares

EBER

The Group’s shareholding in Megawell comprise equity shares
held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Megawell is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

17. REEERTIZRE

2019 2018

—E-NF —Z-N\F

HK$000 HK$°000

EBETFTT BT T

B EFRE 25,556 70,582
BEQARZERNT

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group

Place of
incorporation

and business Principal activity

AR M & FEEELES

i BfAE FEEE

Hong Kong/Mainland 50  Manufacture of
China and Vietnam garments

&/ REXER B BARERE

FEERBENSREEEBALF -—2EH
EMBARSARANER - BERAFTEERK
EENRBBHILIRERENR -

manufacture of garments and is accounted for using the equity

method.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's associate that is not material:

Share of the associate’s profit/(loss) and total

comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Carrying amount of the Group’s investment
in the associate
Dividend received

TREJEAREEMSLTEANBE QAT 2

BEER

2019 2018
—E-hF —EBE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BT

REEREGEE QT

mAL (R R

2EBA S (FE) 54,974 (3,121)

TEBREEARZ
REREE 25,556 70,582
BWRE 100,000 -

BAEEEERAT —Z-hER
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18.

19.

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

In the prior year, the amount due to an associate was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on agreed credit terms.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

18.

19.

FEBE DR
REF - EABEARRDEER - BASR
B T REE R -

BAREBERABENEREE T#
HERE

2019 2018
=t —s-N\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Unlisted investments, at fair value

Less: non-current portion FERBEBD
Current portion TREVEBLD
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE
Quoted investment funds, at fair value BRENREES -
Quoted debt investments, at fair value BRENBRERKRE -

The above unlisted investments as at 31 March 2019 were
investment products issued by financial institutions in Hong Kong.
They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

FLEMRE - BARERTA

BT BEFT

BAREFAEENERERE

145,298 -
(88,352) -

56,946 -

- 85,821
- 66,240

- 152,061

AZE-NF=A=1+—H  LHFETRE
EERBBESBERITIREER - ANZHE
ERNENRERTHEBERERAEZN
EANZERSEIBREAARBEFABENE
BEE -
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20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-

MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Debt instruments at amortised cost RE#EREANERTA
- Hong Kong —-&BE
- Elsewhere —Hithith &
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHNRE
- Hong Kong —-&BE
- Elsewhere — Hithith &
Less: accumulative impairment W RERE
Non-current portion JERENER 1D
Current portion REVEBLD

The debt instruments at amortised cost represents investment in
listed debt instruments, with a principal guaranteed and fixed
interest return.

The investments had an aggregate nominal value of
HK$268,253,000 (2018: HK$377,110,000), and bore interest at
rates ranging from 3.38% to 8.75% per annum (2018: 3.38% to
8.75% per annum). The amortised cost of the held-to-maturity
investments was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount.

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

REBHERANEEL TR HEIH
HIRE

2019 2018
ZE-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT
123,235 -
143,629 -
- 304,665
- 73,966
266,864 378,631
(34,089) (10,308)
232,775 368,323
(164,239) (156,902)
68,536 211,421

ZRCHERINEBTASBERERE -
EFSEHz LHEBTE -

REZZE-NE=ZA=+—0  ZERENE
E{E 5 %815 268,253,000 T (=& — \F : &
#£377,110,0007t) © FHEH3.38%F8.75%
(ZE—\F 1 338%E8.75%) ° HEFHIM
REZEBHENANTENIRIRERNSE
BECEENAS  BMESBEERSEA
AUV RBRASHEAZNPASE ZENR
SHEEEEERTH -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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20.

21.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-
MATURITY INVESTMENTS (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of debt instruments
at amortised cost (2018: held-to-maturity investments) are as

follows:

20.

At beginning of year REZ]
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) REE B (H7e)
At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of debt
instruments at amortised cost (2018: held-to-maturity
instruments) is a provision for individually impaired investments
of HK$34,089,000 (2018: HK$10,308,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$57,242,000 (2018: HK$10,308,000).

The individually impaired investment relates to debtors that
were in financial difficulties and were in default in interest and
principal payments and the entire balance is expected to be
irrecoverable.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials =
Work in progress &M
Finished goods SR
Consumables FERMR
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21.

ROBEREINERIRE B3
HIRE (&)
REMMRANBEETIAE(ZE—N\: #E5
HRROIR ) REREN ST

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT JBHFIT
10,308 -
23,781 10,308
34,089 10,308

ELAREBERENEEIRE(ZE—N
FBREPNRE)RERETEEYEER
ERNFZE IR E BB % 34,089,000 T
(ZZ— )\ : #%10,308,0007T) * HERME
EABH57,242,000T (=T — \F @ B
10,308,0007T) °

BRIRERERZBETAREVNBRNE  RE
BT EEN SR A THE R B TR EZER
5 o

78
2019 2018
—E-—NF =E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
836,771 804,213
103,833 82,453
1,105,303 1,231,346
125,851 119,556
2,171,758 2,237,568
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, BILLS RECEIVABLE, 22. FEWEZ W= - FEFE - 5T

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES SRk HEHMERRRK
2019 2018
ZE-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables FEUBRTR 777,498 954,380
Impariment RE (13,499) (12,962)
763,999 941,418
Bills receivable FEWEE 186,501 108,931
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{IFIE ~ 5] R EALEURBRTX 981,333 773,829
Less: non-current portion: B IERENERD
- long-term prepayments —REAFANFUE (31,428) (119,870)
- long-term rental depostis -RPEEES (86,720) (87,183)
Current portion REVERLD 863,185 566,776
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits ReREMERRRFTEERERSRAETH
and deposits with suppliers. In the situation where no comparable EEziEs -  REZREBEETRZ T
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit LHEARZERT - BS2EELEELEER
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with BIERUATTEPEEEE - 2EBXRETH
reference to the historical loss record. The loss rate is adjusted to B D f BRES RUAR ST % 9 SR SRAS T AR S (4niE A )
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic 2 e R=ZBE—-hFE=ZRA=1+—HERZE
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 March BREIFREK -

2019 was insignificant.

Bills receivable mainly represent bills issued by reputable banks EREEFEEHAEBRTRAREEERTZ
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. An impairment analysis is RITRHECERE - ZRZEEN 2T
performed at each reporting date by considering the probability BREREAMETHEIMRERI®%E
of default, applied ranged from 0% to 0.07% which was 0.07% 2 %iE » HI FREK

insignificant.

BAEEMERLT —T—hEH @
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22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Except for trade receivables as detailed below, none of the above
assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included
in the above deposits and other receivables balances relate to
receivables for which there were no recent history of default.

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trades with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group's trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance of HK$13,499,000 (2018: HK$12,962,000), is as follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

90H
90H K k£

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year REXD
Impairment losses (note 6) WEEE (fite)
At end of year RER

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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EWERR - EWEE « FB{SFIE ~ 7T
SR HMEWERR (&)

BT XHINEWIRSN - BB L EEE R
SRR » R LR & & BB R A R
BRI E E TR R A I R R AV AT SR Y
FEWLARSK

REEFEFIERMAIEREE IZ[#FAR
BHI90K | - EpEEREMD 2 S FRER
EEETRS - ARBYHRRFIAER —E&K
EEFTENEEREFERR - ARAEEER
RRERERZEF  ALAEEANEESH
R o AEEE I E R WORR A RIS A EM
ERRAEMREAERZRE - BRIRTRRE
i o

REBERR - RBERABRIOBRERBEBE
13,499,000 (=& — A5 : j81 12,962,000
TU) B ZBEBIRAR R AT

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT JBHFIT
648,562 767,234
115,437 174,184
763,999 941,418

FEWERFRER R BEVEE N T

2019 2018
= —B2-)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BHTFT BEFT
12,962 10,856
537 2,106
13,499 12,962
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TRADE RECEIVABLES, BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2019

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:

22,

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

EWERRR - EWWESE « FA(SFIE - 7T
SRHEMEWERR (&)

BE-ZE-NFZA=+-BLFEEEEEY
B E RSB IE T RE

REHRE B HR AR EERETRED 7
SAERMEEEE BERDREAFERN
BEER 2 ZERF 2 MHAER B B & (8
ZiEERY - ERER - FFEBRIRUK
ERARIEAEXERARRz2BEZHEE D)
FTE o WIHFTERRIARMBEER - 82
REMEERNRE A HMBESER - BN
RARREERGTRAMES2EERTERE
B —RME - EZRUIRR BN BE—F
R BAZRMAEEBITEE BT LAME -

T X HFIE R T E A B 2 FEUURK
ARREFEERBCER

RZZ-NF=ZA=+—H

BREEHN 2 TERDH

Past due
(=0t
Less than
Current 90 days
B 490K
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEER 0.01% 0.012% 37.3% 6.3%
Gross carrying amount IREREBYFT)
(HK$°000) 103,110 74,108 36,107 213,325
Expected credit loss FEHEERE
(HK$°000) (B#FT) (10) 9 (13,480) (13,499)

Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and seamless
garments:

As at 31 March 2019, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables measured at amortised cost for this segment was
HK$564,173,000, of which the expected credit loss rate is minimal.

ST MO RBEMIRZEFERER

RZEBE-NE=ZA=+—-H0 k2B
CEEANANERRERRAABREY
564,173,0007T * HPFEHEESEZRMTE
o

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2018

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$12,962,000 with a carrying amount of
HK$12,962,000 as at 31 March 2018. The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in default or
delinquency in payments. The Group does not hold any collateral
or credit enhancements over these balances.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 March 2018
that are were not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

22,

Neither past due nor impaired I FE B T R B R
Within 90 days past due HHA90 A A
Over 90 days past due BIHA90H LA E

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of customers that had a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
were of the opinion that no provision for impairment under
HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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SR HMEWERR (&)

BE-_E-N\E=ZA=1+—-HLEERELE
FHEERISE395% 2 RE
EEMERERFHEREREER=_Z—N\F
= A=+ BHERNCHERKRRRESE
12,962,0007T @ ZLLFEWARF M EREE A B
12,962,0007T © %L 18 B 2 R E FEWUEARFUS &
FTEIRNRBIENNEE - XEELENZE
BRERIS B MIK IR B ek AR FHE AV REE ©

RZZE—N\E=A=+—R0  Eslthz &R
BIHERAEERE B ISREEDEINRE
AIRE BRI 2 BRIR D AT T -

2018
—E—N\F

HK$’000
BT T
648,614

248,639
44,165

941,418

WA EBRE 2 ERRES R AR
F 2EEZFLETEITHRER

Al BEFREBEREAS RERE
BERFERGCHE2TFEH - mBEESR -
RARNESEARANMEELERRBERES -
ZEERDATZENRE - AREFFELEZEE
BEFHERISEIRARE R A o AEELER
ZERSERENR  WEERAY -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: EHNESH
Assets BE
Liabilities afE

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$16,540,000 (2018:
HK$47,082,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERRITEHN
R H=EAREHz
TR

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original
maturity within three months
when acquired

Time deposits with original
maturity of over three months
when acquired

EBER

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$201,248,000 (2018: HK$298,556,000). At 31 March 2019, the
Group had time deposits denominated in RMB of HK$74,575,000
(2018: Nil).

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances,
time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.

R H=ER U EEI#Z

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

fTEEmTI A
2019 2018
—E-—hE =t SV~
HK$’000 HK$°000
BMTF T BT T
7,057 43,549
3,334 44,160

REBCHEIT ZERFEE ST ERNED
MESHUEREEZRE -RNER - KA
mARPMERFEEPIMETEEENAAE

47,082,0007T) °

RERASEERY
2019 2018
e S
HK$000 HK$000
BB BEFT
389,338 468,736
1,586,644 1,630,963
104,000 345,329
2,079,982 2,445,028

RIEER U ELHEBREEUARBEE 2R
£ RIRITIE B 201,248,000 (= — N
F : #B#5298,556,0007T) - R=Z—hF=H
=+—0  AEBEARBEE S EHEIE
#574,575,0000(ZF—N\F : &) o

ARBRPBERETEAHGIREMEY
REPEARENINEETRFROIRGEE - EER
NEEESRE  AEEREEBERBETH
EEBZRITEARBRBBHME -

RITFRRES BRITERFRREUZ B 2=
FE - ERREBUERZERBR —FHU
T BFFAEEZAEREFRME - WRE
BHMERREBETERARRDNA L - RITF
RREMREBUERENEERIFARIT -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. ENERX

Trade payables

FEABRSX

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2019
e

HK$’000
BT
824,564

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
BHF T
1,019,340

R|BEIR - RBEEH 2 BARRIRE DT

wmr

2019 2018

=EB-NE —E—N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 90 days 90HA 791,729 927,178
Over 90 days 90B M 32,835 92,162
824,564 1,019,340

At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non-

interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

26.

REIREHR - BARABFMER —RB/IOKX

HYRRES -

Hit BN IR R BT RE

2019 2018

=E-NF —ET-N\F

HK$°000 HK$000

BT BT

Other payables HAth (SRR 194,880 154,375
Deferred government grant IEE B EED 1,468 2,006
Accrued liabilities EEtaE 304,756 332,841
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) 35,745 -
Deferred revenue IEFEUT A - 9,804
536,849 499,026

Non-current portion FEREE D (4,000) -
Current portion mENER D 532,849 499,026

Other payables and certain accrued liabilities are non-interest-
bearing and have an average term of three months.
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(continued)
Note:

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018

are as follows:

Advances received from customers
- Sales of goods
- Franchise income

Customer loyalty programmes

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and customer loyalty programmes reward points.
increase in contract liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2019 was
mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the sales of goods and increase in customer

loyalty programmes reward points.

WKEE PR
—#HEH R
—HAAEEUA

ER A&

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Effective
annual
interest rate

(%)
BRERN=R
(%)
Current TE
Bank loans-  $R{TEF—
unsecured Esigi 1.92-3.90
Non-current  FERE)
Bank loans-  $R{TEF—
unsecured Esigi 1.78-2.70

Maturity

Within 1 year
or on demand

R—FRFEER

April 2020 to
May 2020
“E-ZEQNAE
—B-2FAHA

31 March 2019 —&E—h#F=H=+—H
26. HittENERIFREGFEE@)
MiaE -

(a) REZBE-NF=ZF=+—-AR=ZF—-NEHA
A—HZHASHERNT :

31 March 2019

1 April 2018

—E-NF —E-NF
=A=+—H mE—A
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEF T
29,086 16,160

- 2,847

6,659 1,875

35,745 20,882

EHEBEGERXTER KRR 7
HREFBHNE|CREED - REE=F
—NFZA=1—-HAULFEASHEEEH
B FEARGEERREEL W2
BRI HEEIEMREF st # e E
B BEAEMPTE

27. MERITER

Effective
annual
interest rate

HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$000
BREFIZE

BETT (%) ZI8A BEFT
Within 1 year

1,491,113 1.07-3.92 or on demand 1,390,804
R—FRFRER
April 2019 to

37,500 1.78-2.17 May 2020 187,500
“T-NFNRZE
—Z-ZFHA

1,528,613 1,578,304

EXkEREFRAT —ZT-AEH
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 27. MIERITER @)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

Analysed into: paxig
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFGERE ¢
Within one year or on demand R—FRFIRER
In the second year F-FR

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, all bank borrowings are
in Hong Kong dollars, RMB, United States dollars or Japanese
Yen.

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Group’s banking

facilities were supported by corporate guarantees from the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries.
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BT BEFT

1,491,113 1,390,804
37,500 187,500
1,528,613 1,578,304
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31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EZEFIE
Deferred tax liabilities EESIEAE

Withholding tax on the
distributable profits of ~ Depreciation allowance in

the Group's PRC excess of related

subsidiaries depreciation Others

REENTENEAT BHRBTERAN
A ARERINENSE RERHE Hfts

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“R-hE SE-AF C®-AE CENE CE-AE CE-NF CR-AE SEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BlTr  BETr  BMFr BETr BEFn BEFr BEFn BEFo

At beginning of year REL 94,297 159,253 (721) (721) 6,977 9,475 100,553 168,007
Deferred tax charged/ FRRBREKT
(credited) to the M/ (L)
statement of profitor loss  {EERE(H29)
during the year (note 9) (5,429) (64,956) - - (769) (2,498) (6,198) (67,454)
At end of year REX 88,868 94,297 (721) (721) 6,208 6,977 94,355 100,553
Deferred tax asset BEBREE

Unrealised
losses on Loss available
derivative for offsetting
financial against future
instruments  taxable profits

AAERERE
PTEETHTE FERRBUEFIHY

BREE B8 &%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T B F T BT T
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+tFMA—H - 28,359 28,359
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRRBHERFME
the statement of profit or loss (H0BR) HYIRFER 18
during the year (note 9) (BfEE9)
9,505 (5,055) 4,450

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=FE—N\F=A
=t+—HBR
—E-\FMA—H 9,505 23,304 32,809

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRRKIERE RS ME

the statement of profit or loss (H1RR) IR FERS T8
during the year (note 9) (Hf£9) (9,505) (5,205) (14,710)
At 31 March 2019 R=ZZ—-NF=A
=+—H - 18,099 18,099

BAERMEMAT —2-NEH @
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28.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$601,475,000
(2018: HK$641,273,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising
in Mainland China of HK$471,974,000 (2018: HK$412,142,000)
and in Taiwan of HK$67,331,000 (2018: HK$72,966,000) that
are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which losses arose for a maximum period
of five years and ten years, respectively. Deferred tax asset in
respect of tax losses of HK$491,784,000 (2018: HK$500,037,000),
HK$471,974,000 (2018: HK$412,142,000) and HK$67,331,000
(2018: HK$72,966,000) arising in Hong Kong, the Mainland China
and Taiwan, respectively, have not been recognised as they have
arisen in subsidiaries for which, no assessable profits are expected
to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. At 31 March
2019, the Group does not have unprovided withholding tax (2018:
Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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ERERIE (7)
AEEBREBELEZHEBEABY
601,475000 t ( = & — J\ F : B ¥
641,273,0007T) @ ZEEERBEEBNAT
AR PR HA 6 B 18 AR E IR 8 B 2 2 FERBUR
A REBRPBEAERSEEE ZFIBEHE
DB B EEEA471,974,000T (ZF— \F : &
#412,142,0007T) &% 8% 67,331,000T (=&
— 4 #8%72,966,0007T) » HEELERE
BENARFERZESEREREEZEBE
EEXESBEFRTERANERBEF - AR
BHZENBLARRATRERTEELER
FaFl > REB - PEAERAZEEZH
BEE D B B8 1491,784,000t (ZE— N
£ @ 3#¥5500,037,0007T) © ##£471,974,000
(=T — N\ : j8%412,142,0007T) K84
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TC) HESE R IEE B W MBI TRERR ©
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SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
in nominal value 7B%50.057C
Issued and fully paid: ERETRHE

1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value 7B#0.057T

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company'’s shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of an
associate, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018.

The Group's capital reserve represents the difference between the
consideration for the acquisition of the non-controlling interest
and the respective carrying value.

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

LU
LR

2019
—§-hE

2018
—E-N\E
HK$°000
BT T

HK$'000
BT

2,000,000,000% & IR &

100,000 100,000

1,381,696, 1042 B R EE

69,085 69,085

30. %%

FEERAFERBAFENRBSERAS
ZEB2INGEEEREBRA -

HEAXBDRDE-—ANZFEHATNES

REBZEHRBRAANRCBITRAZHE
HFTRENELRREE A2 BB ITRAE
B2EH-

REECS|I AR B BRELENEIFNBEMS
1R AR -ER-FARENEBAHE
EHHERERGESREERNME - BWB—
BELRAEENEE  NESFRGEEREET
T HEBERN-F-AF=ZA=+—-BAKR=ZF
—NF=ZB=+—H%%E%110,648,0007T °

REBRAFRBEVIEFERESNAER
HIRAE 2 BE5E -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

31. SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 31. BEEAFEREZHEBLAT

INTERESTS

Details of the Group'’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling AEBFEEERFERER ZHBARNGES
interests are set out below: HHWT :

Baleno Holdings Limited HEREEERAR

Percentage of equity interest held by FERERITEZ
non-controlling interests RAER B DL - 36%

2019 2018
—s-hf —=-N\F

HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT

Profit/(loss) for the period/year allocated to PERBEFERERNEAY FE

non-controlling interests =R (E5E) (4,829) 12,422
Consolidated accumulated balances of non- RIREAFERERZ
controlling interests at the reporting dates HRERIERE - 475,671

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 31. BEAFEREXRCHEBAT (#)
INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated TRIREAMBARNREMB AR ZEZEE
financial information of the above subsidiary and its subsidiaries. BERHEE - IELSEYAREEAAE[
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: HEYEAINERE -

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=t—HLEE

2019 2018
=B-hEF —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT

(note a)

(Kizta)
Revenue 'ON 1,503,466 3,995,488
Changes in fair value of investment properties REYEAAREEF - 953
Total expenses BB (1,516,881) (3,961,935)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(EE) (13,415) 34,506
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year REEZEWA(EE)4%58 (84,608) 77,504

As at 31 March

R=RA=+—8
2019 2018
—E-hF =B-N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BHEFT
(note b)
(Htatb)
Current assets MENEE - 2,019,544
Non-current assets IFRBEE - 303,610
Current liabilities mENEE - (940,429)
Non-current liabilities ERBELE - (61,418)
Net cash flows from operating activities REMBRESRNFE - 129,518
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETEBRESRHFE - (32,953)
Net cash flows from financing activities BMEEHRSRABE - 220,656
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 2B INFE - 317,221
Notes: Mzt -
(a)  Represented the financial information up to the date of acquisition (a) ER—E— N FNAEZREHF IR ER H
of non-controlling interest in September 2018. HIFIFEE R
(b)  The subsidiary does not have non-controlling interest as at 31 March (b)) RAEAEFEE=—ZF—NENAKBEIZREZ
2019 upon the acquisition of non-controlling interest by the Group % ZWMEBLrIR=—F-ANF=ZA=1+—H
in September 2018. AP W o

BAERMEMAT —2-NEH @
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31 March 2019 —E— AEFE=F=+—H

32. ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32. WiBIEIER RS
In September 2018, the Group acquired the remaining 36% equity RZEBE-NEhA  XEEURSREBE
interest in Baleno Holdings Limited at the total cash consideration 69,450,000 T @ FFIER IR RINEIIEREER
of HK$69,450,000 from the non-controlling shareholders. Baleno PRA B FER 2 36%RIE - MR ZTHAT » A&
Holdings Limited was an indirect 64%-owned subsidiary of the EFEEEEMRINEREEGRATNR
Company right before the completion of the transaction and 7 X5% REREBFRARNRAHAEE
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company BEERE2EMRBAR

upon completion of the transaction.

The following summarised the financial impact arising from the AT AEEREEREBRRATZHME
changes in the Group’s ownership interest in Baleno Holdings EREZEHHREA LI BEESIEEER
Limited on the equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of FrEEZ e E

the Company:

2019
—E-hEF
HK$000
BT T
Carrying amount of the non-controlling W BB IE I R R 2 BRIEI(E
interests acquired 445,212
Total consideration paid to the non-controlling X{T#AFFIERBRRANRER
shareholders and related cost EE) oS (70,032)
Increase in equity attributable to ordinary BEAAREBEREE
equity holders of the Company RSN 375,180

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDARIES 33. HEWEBAF
On 21 December 2016, Trustland Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary RZEBE—ARE+ZBA=Z+—8 & QFz22E
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement HEEMB AR Trustland INcEE—B I E=75%
with an independent third party to dispose of its entire equity EEHE 0 UKEB%65322,000tHE
interest in Winca Investments (China) Limited and its subsidiary at Winca Investments (China) Limited & = Fft
a consideration of HK$65,322,000. The transaction was completed BATMEEZ ZXEN-_E—tENAR
in April 2017. B e
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
BT T
Net assets disposal of: S EEFE -
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BENRE 2,589
Cash and bank balances RERVITFR 155
Prepaid land lease payments FES L FHER 6,599
Prepayments and other receivables FEASRRIE R B A U ER K 2,693
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hin IR R BT EE (164)
11,872
Release of exchange reserves Bz INEREHE (3,804)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB L R E 57,254
65,322

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T
Satisfied by: BAAER
Cash* HE* 65,322
* Such cash consideration was received in prior years. * ZERTREERUEFEEWR
An analysis of the net cash and cash equivalents in respect of the BRLENBARZRERESSEYTFEZ
disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: DHWT :

2018

—E-NF

HK$’000

BT T

Cash consideration received during the year HeERE -

Cash and bank balances disposed of HECZRERBITER (155)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EEHEMBATIZRERREE

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BYREFEE (155)

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. SABESHERM:E
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities BMETBHEEZEEEE

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings

M SERITEM

HK$000

BT T

At 1 April 2017 R-B—+&mA—H 2,517,281

New interest-bearing bank borrowings i R RITER 2,026,781
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings BEMERITER (3,004,916)

Foreign exchange movement INE B 39,158

At 31 March 2018 R=ZZE—-NE=F=+—8 1,578,304

New interest-bearing bank borrowings FHIEBIRITER 4,492,208
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings EEMERITER (4,530,250)
Foreign exchange movement INE TR (11,649)

At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H 1,528,613

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. EAE
(@)  Atthe end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not (a) MBEHR > UTHEEBERRVER
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RPEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
B FT BT T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REERAYEZREZ
property rental deposits RATIER 4,193 4,975
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain subsidiaries
of the Group for the years of assessment from 2005/2006 to
2016/2017.

Details of protective tax assessments issued by the IRD to
certain subsidiaries of the Group:

Protective tax assessments

RIS R fh

Related to the year of assessment

EERBFE

2005/2006 March 2012
—ETH/-BEAN —E-=%=4
2006/2007 March 2013
—EENCBEL —E-=f=§
2007/2008 March 2014
“EEL/ZBEN —E-mE=F
2008/2009 March 2015
—EENZEZTH —E-HF=AH
2009/2010 March 2016
—ETH-F-% —B-RE=H
2010/2011 January 2017
—E-TTF—— —2—+HF-—f8
2011/2012 January 2018
—EF——/=F—= —E-NF—A
2012/2013 April 2018 and January 2019
—E-D/ZE-= —E-N\FOAR=ZE-NF—A
2013/2014 April 2018
—E-=Z/=Z—N —E-NFMA
2014/2015 April 2018
—E-W/—E—-H —E-NFMA
2015/2016 April 2018
ZE-RH/ZE-R —E-N\FMmA
2016/2017 April 2018
—E-NZE—t —Z2-N\FMmA

Issued in month/year

BHFEH/A B

The directors of these subsidiaries believe that there are
valid grounds to object to the tax claimed. Subsequent to
the objections filed, the IRD agreed to hold over the tax
claimed completely subject to the purchases of tax reserve
certificates.

In view that the tax review is still in progress, the outcome
of the case is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the directors of the Company
consider that adequate tax provisions have been made in
these financial statements.

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

35. BEAE®)

(b)

BRI (B ) OAEEBHHE
AAREA-BTE/-FTAE-F
—N/=E— R R R
B -

B3 1) AN SE D40 Ffd /8 2 ) 3% HH VAR
PERBRAEE

Amount of
tax reserve
certificates

Tax amount purchased
Ea%E CEERESSHE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T

69,125 4,500
189,000 31,500
388,878 34,000
376,200 38,000
323,648 38,000
237,600 50,000
183,745 7,090
175,049 46,069
498,940 166,320
247,460 82,500
230,400 71,710
129,628 49,808

ZEWBAREZHEARNEENE
AHBAELRE - RIEHRER - B
RREEEMENHEMBR - ESEB
Hf#HS o

HRRBERNEETT  EBHFNE
RMATHR - BEXABBHRRLE
B RORESARLTBIHERSP 2B
HBHT R -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13)
and sublets certain properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

R—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessee

The Group leases certain land and buildings for factories,
retail outlets, a training centre and directors’ quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Such leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from 3 years to 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

R—%FR
BEoEELFAN(BEERMF)
REF#

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or the contingent rent
based on the sales derived from the retail outlets pursuant
to the terms and conditions as set out in the respective
rental agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be estimated reliably, the relevant contingent
rent has not been included above and only the minimum
lease commitment has been included in the above table.
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36.

REHERE
@ fEREEA

EEEAFN(BEEREWE)

(b)

FEBERESEHERHHEETRE
Y3 (MEE13) REBIDWE - ZFTHE
H—FZ20F - HORR—RRERP
ARNRBRERTAUTREERTS
EREREHAERE -

RIBEMR - AEERBEBEFT L2
TAHHEEHES N 2 RREEER
HERFIBBERAOT -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T EBFT

27,723 30,559

22,084 49,124

49,807 79,683
ERAEBA

AL EIRIEE AR 2 IR B0 1
RARF RIERE - BEFT - Y
REFES - REANBTAB=FE
A+ -

RIBEMR - AEERBEEFIT VI
TAHEEEREESORREEEMNHE
THRBIMERDT

2019 2018
—E-—NF =E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
273,727 364,255
285,790 497,499
374,170 366,722
933,687 1,228,476

BHOZEMTZEERABETIZERE
HEHIREBBERL T EZ R
BEEEMTMHEERMNEE 2 AEEH
ERZREEFE - ARNEEERMLT
BWEREMMARZHEERE  REXRK
FFAHBERAESE - MAFARERS
HYE
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the end

of the reporting period were as follows:

In respect of property, plant and equipment,
contracted but not provided for

38. RELATED
(a)

BARIEEE

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following related party

transactions:

Sales to Megawell

Purchases from Megawell

Rental expenses paid to related
companies

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HETEE

B R EEREE

B B A B 2 A
HeER

In prior year, sales to Megawell were made according to
the prices and conditions offered to major customers of the
Group.

In prior year, the directors considered that purchases from
Megawell were made according to the prices and conditions
similar to those offered to other customers by Megawell.

Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which
certain directors of the Company are also the directors
and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The directors
considered that the monthly rentals were charged based on
the prevailing market rates at the dates of entering into the
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors’
quarters were included in the directors’ remuneration as
detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.

I - BENRRE

37.

B AR

REERIFEBRE AT EARM AL

2019 2018
ZE-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT
 BETH
104,709 150,398
38. BEALXS

(a)

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

RER  AEEBETUTHEEALR

B

2019 2018
—s-nE —s-n&
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
- 3,493

- 31,282

24,881 24,438

Bt -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

RAEXRERRLR

REF - [FEEZHETIIRIELEE
BEBEFIREZEERRIFMHTY

REF  EERBEEEREZER
RAFIE - BEERMEFiEHe
& -

& BHEXATTBE R AERAT
BBR P EAEZHE L A EERE
& BEPIH RGN L - ZERA
ZEBREmRRIBALEZE0
B -EFZRBEAZHLTIREH
ERR#HTHZ TS EKEE - 14
REFFEHLEHACORERESH
& WFFIRHTBEIRZMET

—E-AER
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Bin Jiang
Road 282-286, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as
a retail outlet for the retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories business of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent
of RMB1,329,900 for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
March 2020. During the year, the Group paid to MRL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$18,595,000 (2018: HK$18,866,000).

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company, to
lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from
Latex as a director’s quarters of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent
of HK$400,000. During the year, the Group paid to Latex
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$4,800,000 (2018: HK$4,800,000).

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“VWLEL"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza
Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong and a car parking space from WLEL as a training
centre of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200. During
the year, the Group paid to WLEL operating lease rentals
in respect of the above property of HK$758,400 (2018:
HK$758,400).
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38.

BEALRS @)

(b)

RZZE—NFEZA+=H " AEEH
LWEBARERARTLE D (BERAF
NWHTESRERBRREWERLLESR
BER)HETEH  mLEABEMLRS
Bl R # M F BIE L& 28255 — 2865
WREEIRGEE  FAREEE
REMcEERDHEENETEM
oA N\FENA-—BEEHM
F -8B - NFEA—
HE-_Z_ZF=FA=+—HHHES
AR#1,329,9007T c RAF » KEH
RELAYEDLELIFEEHRERS
7 #518,595,000 T (=T — \F : B
18,866,0007T) °

RZE-—NEZA+=0 FEEHEY
E(BEB)ERARA(TLE]D (AERAT
HITESRERRREWELEZER
BT BMEARAEBEEL
RERE2  FAFEE—EERE
BEzH -BA-E-\ENA-AEAEH
M 8 AH%RE%400,0007T ° A
NE S REFR ERYERB B TR
EIHEH $8%4,800,000T(=ZZE— N
& : 78%4,800,0007T) °

RZBE-—NEZA+=0  FEHEEK
FEMCEERAT(TKEHE]D (BELD
FHTEERERBRIEWELESRE
BE)BTEH > BXEEAEEBH
REBEFR22IEHASESE2E
42124207BE R —EEEN - EAERE
EREIPL - HZE-NFEA—H
B BEWE SAHESAB63,200
T o AARE » REER LY ERKE
B (J LA SRS B8758,4007 (=
Z— J\4F : j8#758,4007T) °
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BEALRS#®)
(c)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (00 ZAEETEEEASTHHN
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Short term employee benefits EHEEET 56,601 66,311
Post-employment benefits BB ER 36 27
Total compensation paid to key FTEEEAE
management personnel Faai k-l 56,637 66,338
The key management personnel of the Group refers to the AEBENEREEABNARTNHRT
executive directors of the Company. -
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in EEMSF RN M REMET -

note 7 to the financial statements.

Rental expenses under 38(b) to the financial statements RIE B IR M EE38(b) M B E A Al X
paid to related companies also constituted continuing FHESEATER ETRAFE14AE
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the NEFRERXS - BKERERESEHRER
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the section of “Details [TERENFERETZFHEIN &
of non-exempt continuing connected transactions” of the THBEEARXNNEEERTERIE
Report of the Directors, the remaining rental expenses paid EHRAEVMAEREERARAR - A
to related companies constituted continuing connected ERBIRRIENFEEERS ©

transactions are exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements set
out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BAEEMERLT —T—hEH @
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REFESHEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RFER > SESHITARIDENT -

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets SREE
2019
—E-hE
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss costs Total
BAREGA REBHEEE
BRMEemEE NEMEE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT BYTFT
Trade receivables FEURBRTR - 763,999 763,999
Bills receivable EWREE - 186,501 186,501
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREGRE TR
deposits and other receivables (note 22) HitnfEW R Z
SREE (ME22) - 715,142 715,142
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBERANEETA - 232,775 232,775
Financial assets at fair value BARER ABEN
through profit or loss SREE 145,298 - 145,298
Long term rental deposits ReRe - 86,720 86,720
Derivative financial assets TEERMERE 7,057 - 7,057
Cash and cash equivalents BEeRBEZEEY - 2,079,982 2,079,982
Total &t 152,355 4,065,119 4,217,474

2018
ZE-N\F
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
Held-to- through profit Loans for-sale
maturity  or loss - held and financial
investments for trading receivables assets
BARME
REHH ERR AHHE
HRE HEEE FERIE SHEE CH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BEFT BT BEFT
Trade receivables FEWERTR - - 941,418 - 941,418
Bills receivable FEhEE - - 108,931 - 108,931

Financial assets included in BERBNTE TR
prepayments, deposits and HitEWERET A2

other receivables EREE - - 317,646 - 317,646
Held-to-maturity investments ~ #ZZIHNRE 368,323 - - - 368,323
Available-for-sale investments ~ A[{EHERE - - - 152,061 152,061
Long term rental deposits REHASES - - 87,183 - 87,183
Derivative financial assets fTELREE - 43,549 - - 43,549
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEEY - - 2,445,028 - 2,445,028
Total 368,323 43,549 3,900,206 152,061 4,464,139

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2019 —E— A F=H=+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 39. REFESHERMIAm)

Financial liabilities

TReE

2019
—E-hF
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE#H
RARETA RRASHY
BEnemas SRIBE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B FT BT T BT T
Trade payables FE(TERR - 824,564 824,564
Bills payable EAEE - 21,443 21,443
Financial liabilities included in BIEREMEMNRTRE
other payables and accrued ERBERzEREAns
liabilities (note 26) (Hizt26) - 495,636 495,636
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeRmEE 3,334 - 3,334
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2 RITE R - 1,528,613 1,528,613
Total &t 3,334 2,870,256 2,873,590

Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss — held amortised
for trading cost
BRARE
FTABRMN RO #H
SRIBE A
—REEE TRIBE &%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BHEFT BHEFT BEFT
Trade payables FE(SERFR - 1,019,340 1,019,340
Bills payable FEAT =45 - 19,232 19,232
Due to an associate PEATEE & A ) - 20 20
Financial liabilities included in BENEMENSRGR
other payables and accrued EitaERzemas
liabilities - 235,699 235,699
Derivative financial liabilities fTeEemas 44,160 - 44,160
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2R{TE R - 1,578,304 1,578,304
Total &5t 44,160 2,852,595 2,896,755
EXkEREFRAT —ZT-AEH
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40.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

40.

ERMITAZAARBER

AEESRTAEZIRMER A AE(REEHR
HARBEREMAERE 2T BRI HIIm
T:

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ARE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—Z=—hE —E-NE —ZE—-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T BYTFT BHF T
Financial assets SRIEE
Derivative financial instruments TTEERmTE 7,057 43,549 7,057 43,549
Financial assets at fair value B REFTABRN
through profit or loss SRIEE 145,298 - 145,298 -
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1% T LAY
BTA 232,775 - 229,019 -
Available-for-sale investments HHERE - 152,061 - 152,061
Held-to-maturity investments BEIBMNERE - 368,323 - 358,250
385,130 563,933 381,374 553,860
Financial liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments TESmIE 3,334 44,160 3,334 44,160

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, bills payable, amount due to an associate, current
portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings, and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accrued liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.
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EEECHMERERBTEEY - BURIRF
KR - BERENRE s SR EtEY
RAAZERMEE - BOURR BEARE - &
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department directly reports to the board. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
board.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and debt instruments at amortised cost are estimated based
on quoted price.

The fair values of the long term rental deposits and interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The model incorporates
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

40.

31 March 2019 —&E—h#F=H=+—H
SMIAZAAEBEEZER @)

AEEMMBRERE MBMEEREEH
TAAREFEZHERME - BHEIBEED
EZEER - RE-REA - BHEBITEE
TEEEEY  WREGEKREAZEZHA
B GERESSESIE -

ERMEEREBZARBEUZTIARBERS
F(MIFRERERHEE)ENTE T 2ARS
SHEAR - EFFEHAARERCRATIEE
KRR

BAREBEFABENEMEERIZCSHERA
HES TR D AETRREG

RAHESRERWERTERFRDBHCE
REAELRN  FERBRRSTEHAZT
AER A2 FIRER AR ERE LG
HEEARE - AKER-ZE-NF=A=1+—
AR RRITERNE S TENRRETER
EVNL

FEBHESEHF(TRZRSRMBB)FTLITE
ERTE - {TESRTIA(BERBINESH)
B AENREFTEENEER M EERI
T8 - ZERABESETSUTBER AR
BEHFNEEER  INENDHRERER
RAZRR o BEHIESONREEREKEN
DNAEMEE -

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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40. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 40. €I EZ D AREEH(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIPEAREBWNESFHITENDAEBTEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: F
Assets measured at fair value: BRARBEIENEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019
R-EB-AE=ZA=+—HHNARETERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RER EX EDN
k) GIf o2 THEEN
HE BARIE WARE

(F—4R) (E=#R) (E=#R) k)

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BYTFT B TFT BEToT

Derivative financial assets TTEEmERE - 7,057 - 7,057
Financial assets at fair value BAREFTABRN

through profit or loss SRIEE 145,298 - - 145,298

145,298 7,057 - 152,355

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
R=B-\F=A=t+—BNAREIBRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

HAER E-DN B

TISHY AIERERAY TRIERELHY

HRE BABUE BABUE
(55—4%) (58=#) E=) g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BHEFT B FT BEFT B F T
Derivative financial assets THEemEE - 43,549 - 43,549
Available-for-sale investments THEERE 152,061 - - 152,061
152,061 43,549 - 195,610
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40. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

TTEEREE

TESREE

BRAREENEE

40. ERMTIECZRAAREBESEHE)

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019

R=-B-hE=A=+—8HH®

Quoted prices
in active

markets
(Level 1)

AER
ik
WwE
(B—4)
HK$°000
BT

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
BX
AR
A BE
(=)
HK$°000
EETFT
3,334

RNAEFERA

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

BEX
TR
[TPN ¢:
(E=8)
HK$°000
BT T

#azg
HK$’000
BT

3,334

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018

REZB—NF=ZA=+—HWAREFTELHRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
PSR EDN BX
TisH AJERELHY TRIEEH
HRIE BABIE BARE
(55—#%) (BB=#R) (BB=#) PR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT B FT BT T BT T
- 44,160 - 44,160
EAEREERAE —ZT-hFRH
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40. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 40.

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Group had no
financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities

EMIBEZARESERE)

R_E-NFE=R=+—HBHRZZ—N\$=AH
=+—8 FAEETEZRARBFELE=H
£mTH -

FR - eREEREHMEEYREMTAAEBER
BE-REF-REBNER  TERE=R
BAGEBLH(ZE-NF 8-

(2018: Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EREALBENEE

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019

R-EB-AE=ZA=+—HNAARETERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
inputs
(Level 2)
BX
BIEE:)
WARE
(=)
HK$°000
EETT

markets
(Level 1)

inputs
(Level 3)
BX
TR
L7PN ¢:1
(E=#R)
HK$°000
BT

HER
Gt )
HE
E)
HK$°000
BMTT

g
HK$’000
BEToT

Debt instruments at amortised cost 1% T LAY

B%THE 229,019 - - 229,019

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
REZB—N\F=ZA=+—HWAREFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
inputs
(Level 2)
BR
AIERER
LoD\
(BB=#)

MEG
(Level 1)

inputs
(Level 3)
BR
TRIEEH)
AR
(E=)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

358,250 - -

&R
5
#HE
(B—4%)
HK$'000
BETFT

Pk
HK$’000
BT T
358,250

BEIHNRE

Held-to-maturity investments
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans, cash and cash equivalents. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills receivable,
trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivative financial instruments
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.

41.

31 March 2019 —E—##=f=+—H
MHEEREEBERBER

AEE TESHTE (R4 TAN) DR
FERC RERBLSEN - RESHIAY
TEAWERAEESREEES - AEEE
HTENSREER S - MERER - B
WS - ENERRENES  DEEREH
2 -

AEBTTURETESHMTE T EBEE
HHNESYR  SEEEAKELERMENRE
Lz EHER -

FEBTRITAMEEZTEZERBRBTIRME
B~ SNEREE - FERBRKREMEER - B
SEMURIBRATEL LSRR - ZEBX
BT - AEEABETEEMTACETHR
KHRPBRKMEE2.4

RRER
REBEH TSN RSB AMERERER 2
FRIBITERERH -

FEBNBRRFAGBENESRZEERE
BUEBAFBRAE - BUERAREEEZ
BE  AEETZHFIREHEHLURERE
HRIZR B 2 B o
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41.

@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through the

impact on floating rate borrowings).

2019 —E-hEF
Hong Kong dollar B
Hong Kong dollar B
2018 —E-N\F
Hong Kong dollar e
Hong Kong dollar e

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 45% (2018:
32%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 27% (2018: 27%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

41.

BRRABREEBEERBE @)

FIRER (F)
TRERTEEEMEEGEENERT - &
SEHBRBADER KBRS E R TR RI=R
BB (I EERNEZE) ERE -

Percentage Increase/
point of (decrease)
interest rate in profit
increase/ before tax
(decrease) and equity
BRELAT

AR R

FlE M, (L) 2, 04)
B HK$000
BEFT
1 (15,535)

(1 15,535
1 (17,425)

(1) 17,425

HNEEEL RS

TEBFEXSEBRAR  ZREBRRELEE
1 A RZBE N ThRE E M LU Ih 2 B WS (TS E SR
B8 o REENAS% (2T —)\FE 1 32%) ZHE
TS E BN I EB U EBEHE - [
H27%(ZF—\F 1 27%) ZRANTILUE L E
IIhREE M LN EHELEE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2019 —E-hEF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BB EARYEEE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB  fiif ;8% 5 A R ¥ FHE
2018 —E-N\F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B HARMERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {384 5 A\ R FHE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 22
to the financial statements.

41.

31 March 2019 —&E—h#F=H=+—H
BERREEEERBE®)

SRR ()

TRERRTRRERR  TREEMEHMEZE
BERT - AEE A ERBIATER R AR B R
SEHEERUENARBERZH (HNER
HEEMBEAAENEE) BRI

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax
and equity
BB
AR R
21, (f4)
HK$°000
BT T

Percentage of
exchange rate
increase/
(decrease)

EREM, (D)
Fth%

1 1,090
(1) (1,090)
1 1,796

(1) (1,796)

FERE
FEBEEREACERFZE=ERS - &
EECHEAREBARIFER 2EFHALE
HIRP » RETERZEEFRRER  thoh
REBFEBERRWRURSE - AILAEE
WEE K ZIBIRE

FERHMEREE(BRRASRRASEEY
ROTEERIA) 2 FERBREARZHFE
WMEL  BeRBAENRZETAZER
B HRUEAGEREERIHFEIERER
DNREERFZHEE  EUHESRLHZERR
WAEK o

HRASEEEEBEACERF2E=EX

5 HAEEREMHERR -

HitERAEEHEHERRIELENEER
Bz 2t ERTRERIBIRRME22

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. BIERREEEEREE &)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR(#E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2019 R-IBE-NFZF=+—HZRBAREBERFLZ
e

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TREJIREFAEEEERREZEEEZRE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which REERBR(TERBEAPERMEL  BRIEH
is mainly based on past due information unless other information HERATEBARHABERRIRE H2ER
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging TES) UR-E-—HAEFE=A=1+—8B2ZF
classification as at 31 March 2019. The amounts presented are HEREDIT - 2z eEAeREELARE
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to ERRMBEREABREZEERR -

credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B
EH
FEEE A AE AR EEEE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—RR SRR SRR SeEX wE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EEFrT BETm BTt BETFT

Trade receivables* U BR TR * - - - 777,498 777,498
Bills receivable EWERE 186,501 - - - 186,501
Financial assets included in BRERBEMRE -
prepayments, deposits AR EAMEN
and other receivables RRAZEMEE 863,185 - - - 863,185
Debt instruments at amortised cost 2 #E KA HY
BEIER 219,011 - 47,853 - 266,864
Long term rental deposits REEEES 86,720 - - - 86,720
Cash and cash equivalents RERFASEEY 2,079,982 - - - 2,079,982
3,435,399 - 47,853 777,498 4,260,750

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified — * FREF W AR R EEF LR - FFHERER
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix BB ERFME22 ©
is disclosed in notes 22 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and
bank loans. As at 31 March 2019, 2% (2018: 12%) and 98% (2018:
88%) of the Group’s total borrowings would mature after one
year and in less than one year, respectively.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

31 March 2019 —&E—h#F=H=+—H
41. BREREEEEREE @)

REMREE
FREBEERRFAARTEIRBTERNUEE
RESHWEEMRBEEIGETE - R°F
—hWE=ZA=1+—0  AEERERN2% (=
Z—N\F 12%)R98%(=ZF—/\F : 88%)
DRER—FERR—FREE -

FEERBERRNERNEE  REFRER
ZATHE ISR AT

2019
—B-NE
3 to
Less than less than

3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
==
=EANR +t=@EAR —Z&HF &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
BiFr BETFrT BTt BETFrT
1,373,198 125,650 37,669 1,536,517

791,729 32,835 - 824,564
21,443 - - 21,443
385,400 - - 495,636
3,334 - - 3,334

(o]]

demand

RER

HK$'000

BT T

Interest-bearing bank borrowings K 21T & -

Trade payables FEATRRTR -

Bills payable FEfT & -
Financial liabilities included in BIENE A ETIRR

other payables and REFERBERZ

accrued liabilities SRIBE 110,236

Derivative financial liabilities THEeRAans -

110,236

2,575,104 158,485 37,669 2,881,494

On
demand

RER
HK$°000
BT T

PANE:]
—E-N\F
3to
Less than  less than

3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

=z

=@BEUA +=BAR —Z&HF a5
HK$°000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETFT
1,227,173 169,860 189,675 1,586,708

927,178 92,162 - 1,019,340
19,232 - - 19,232
130,846 - - 235,699
- - - 20
21,533 22,627 - 44,160

Interest-bearing bank borrowings it 28T &k -
Trade payables FEATERRX -
Bills payable eI -
Financial liabilities included in BEREMESIRR
other payables and accrued REFEERZ
liabilities E@Aans 104,853
Due to an associate FEATEE A R 20
Derivative financial liabilities THEemas -
104,873

2,325,962 284,649 189,675 2,905,159

RAEKEARRLE —T-LEFRH
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41.

©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41.

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

B BB
kR - RERBESEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity BRER

Gearing ratio (times)

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

EARE B EFE)

BRRABREEBEERBE @)

BEREE
FEBEREEEDBAAEBEERSENSE
EEEh - ANBAKENEREESES U
FEEBERMEESIRADE -

TEEEEEREBURRBEEEERNEE
EHFTAE - REETURBRARERRIREN
BRE ~ MRRBBERLBITHRARFRSA
BERGERE - RBE-Z-hE=A=+—H
R—ZE—NE=A=1+—HLFER EXE
B EZ  BURREF I EESE o

REBEREFEBELRERER  EXEE
LERZNBRERRESBENRNENEER
PROVRERSTE - AEBNBREEERER
BELERNEEKTF -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT JBHFIT
1,528,613 1,578,304
(2,079,982) (2,445,028)
(551,369) (866,724)
5,377,554 5,724,989

-0.1 -0.2
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RMBARZRE

RBEE
ANRERE £
RERREEEY

BRBEE

RBAE
HitE SRR B & E

BERE
R
BEATIRA

TG
BORREIR S

g

42,

BRI T

RABRBEBR 2P BRRRERNT ¢

2019 2018

=B-hEF —E-NE

HK$'000 HK$000

BEFT BETT

2,612,009 3,025,507

201 201

268 765

469 966

393 722

76 244

2,612,085 3,025,751

69,085 69,085

2,335,746 2,749,412

207,254 207,254

2,612,085 3,025,751
BAEREARLE —T-hFH
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. ARIBHERREK#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: i
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR EFEELNT -

Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total

&S (&S
R E AR RE BARER RE T R
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T

At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFWA—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 2,478,623 3,232,391
Total comprehensive AFEEREBALEE
income for the year - - - 614 614
2017/2018 interim dividend —B—+ /=N
FERHRE 10 - - - (276,339) (276,339)
2017/2018 proposed —Z—+t/=F-N\
final dividends FERIRRBARE 10 - - - (207,254) (207,254)
At 31 March 2018 and R-Z—-N&F
1 April 2018 =A=+—Hk
RZZE-N\ENA—HB 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,995,644 2,749,412
Total comprehensive AFEEREBALRE
income for the year - - - 842 842
2018/2019 interim dividend —E-NZE-Hh
FERHRE 10 - - - (207,254) (207,254)
2018/2019 proposed —E-N\/=F-h
final dividend FERRRHRE 10 - - - (207,254) (207,254)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-AF
=A=+—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,581,978 2,335,746
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference HEAQXBDBROE-—NAN=—FLHAINEAS
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the ARB 2 BHBBRAAARERITREACEHE
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries HEREREARRNKBACEHEEFHE
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the ZEE -REBRE-NAN—FQAREEE
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company'’s M) ARETERTIREEHEER -

shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. MBHRZUE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AUBHRERENR=—Z—NEASATIAHES
by the board of directors on 19 June 2019. BRERTETIE -

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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